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ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORFORATION LTEL 3
{A Gavernment Company of the Stale of Odisha)
CIN: YA01840R19845G 0001429 b

Regd. OFf: Zone — A, 7* Floar, Fortune Towers, Chandrasekliarpur,
Bhubaneswar - 751023, Cdisha, Phane No-0674-2303765-66, FAX: 0674-2303755/56
Web: wvav.opgc.co.in

Ref: No.QPGL/ LR G B /N £, 01.17.10.2025
To

The Chlef General Manager (PP)
GRIDCO Lrd.
Bhubaneswar.

Sub: Half yearly Fucl Price Adjustment Bill of Unit 182 for the Peried ending 30™ Sep 2025 far FY
2025-26

{Without Prejudice)

Rek: {1} PPA did. 13.08.1995 and amended dtd. 19.12.2012
{2) OPGC Tariff Order FY 2025-26 case no 822024 dated 24.03.2025

Dear Slr,

Please find attached herewith the half yearly fuel price adjustment bill for the year 2025-26 up to
Sep"2025 (Without prejudice] computed in terms of OERC order & PPA referred above along with
the Statutory Auditors Cerificate.

Kindly make necassary arrzngement to clear the amount at the earliest.

Thanking you,
Yours falthfully,

Encl: As above A

a e

General Manager Finance

C.C. to_4£1] Director [Finance), GRIDCO Ltd,, Bhubanreswar for Infarehation.
(2] Branch Head, Union Bank of tndia, Main Branch, Bhubaneswar for informatlon and
necessary action.
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ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED

A Government Company of the State of Odisha
Unit 1 Ih Thermal l’c‘r-u Btatlon (2 x 210 MW

QPGC Kegd. Office: Torve <A, Fith Noor, Fartune Towers, Ch - TH102D, Ddlha, www-Opgr-cidn
GITIN: A1AAACO4TSIRIZE
Bilt of Sunply
Invoice No: BSMFPAD22425 State: Odisha
Date of Issue: 17.10,2025 5tate Cade: 21
Blll to Party 5hip to Party

{Name: GRIDCO Ltd.

Name: GRIOCO Ltd

Address: Janapath, Bhubaneswar Janpath-2
Bhubaneswar 751022

Address: Janapath, Bhubaneswar lanpath-2
Bhubaneswar 751022

.GSHPQUIN: 21AABCGE398P1323 GSTINSUIN: 21AABCGE398P1323
State: Odlsha |Code: 21 | State: Odisha |Code: 21 i
! Productlon | i
Sr.Nol Description HENCode ! UOM |QTY| Rate ! Amount Value of supply
1/5ale of Power 2715000 AU 2,10,40,645 2,10,40,645
TOTAL I 2,10,40,645 2,10,40,645

Totnl Invoice Amount {In words)
(Rupees Two Crore Ten lakhs forty thousand six forty five Only)

Donk Dotalls

{Bank A/C: Unlcn Bank of India, Bhubaneswar . Af< No. 350805010000063

E&OE
For Odisha Power Generatlon

Terms & Conditions : PPA dated 13.8,1996

Booda Agammj,

Authorised Signatery

o (tl‘.:‘ anian L4

Power Gonaration Larpot .
mzl::e-.&,w;rlh Floor, Foriung Tewers

Chandrasekhapif, BhubaneswarTaIEd
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A s R & ASSOCIATES
- [}

red Accountants

Ro! Mo OPGCICertiNicate/20251 DLI7/M0R025

To,

The Managing Birector,

Qdisha Powar Generation Corgoration Limlied,
7" Floor, Fortune Tower, C.S.Pur,
Bhubaneswar-721024,.0DISHA

Statutory Auditers'  Certlficate of Flnanclal ltems for Odisha Power Generation Corporation
Limited, (OPGC Lid.) Bhubaneswar. :

4. Thls Centificale Is Issued in accordance with the lerms of our engagement as Statulory
Auditors of the OPGC Lid.

2. The details required for cerlfication of some financial ltems { Fue! Piice Adjusiment to
revenue} far tha OPGC Ltd,

Maragement’s Rasponsibllity for the Statement

3. The preperation of the Statements is the responsibliity of OFGC Ltd. {hereinaiter the
*Company”) including the preparation and maiatanance of all accouniing and other relevant
supporting records and documents. This responsibifity includes  the design, implementation
and maintenance of intemat conlro) relevan! to the preparalion and presentation of the
Statemants and applying an appropriate basis of preparation and making statements that are
reasonable in the clrgumsiances.

Statutory Auditors’ Responsibility

4. Itis our responsibilily to provide reasonable assurance whather the amounts given in enclosed
statements pertaining lo financial Hems kave elther been accurately extracted from the books of
gccounts of the Company.

5. We conducted our examination of the Statements in accordance with the Guidance Note an
Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the Inslitute of Chartered Accountants
of India{Revised 2016). The Guidance Note requires that wo comply with the ethical
requiremants of the Ceds of Ethics issuad by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

L™ .

rnag Behe . Office Unit- 430 & 431. 4th Ficor, Esplanade Ona Mall, 721, Rasuigarh, Bhubaneswar-751010. Odisha
. E.mail - antmihin@gmailcom, Tei.: 7004003918, 8437030925

| FeisaTire . BERHAMPUR . RAVAGADA © MUMBAL & RANCHI ~ PATNA = LUCKNOW




6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
{SQC) 1, Quality Contral for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and Other Assurance and Relaled Services Engagements.,

Qplnion

7. Based on our examinalion of the books of accounts and other refevant documents and
information given to us, we are of the opinion that the balance amount provided In the
Provisional Fuel Price Variation Adjustment as per the provisions of Bulk Power Supply
Agreement between OPGC L% and GRIDCO Lid{Formerly-GRID Corporation of Orissa Lid)
stands as Rs.2,10,40,645/» {(Rupees two crore ten lacs forty thousand six hundred forty
five only) from 1 April 25 to 30" September 2025 (FY2025-26} .

Restriction on use

8. The cerificate Is addressed to and provided (o the Management of the Company solely for
the purpose Indicated in the Agreement between OPGC Lid. & GRIDCO Ltd.

For Anil Mihir & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN-303038E

%a):’ @1\\3"\".

{CA Surendra Kumar Sahu)FCA
Partner

MN-D54327§

UDIN-

Date:17.10.2025

Placo: Bhubaneswar
VDIN - 25054321 BmLY oR2€2E

8/ Q%
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ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED
PO-BANHARPALI, DISTJJHARSUGUDA, PIN-768 234

Provislonal Fuel Price AdJustment bill from 1st April 2025 to 30th Sep 2025 for the FY 2025 - 26

BILL NO- BSMFPAD12525
DATED: 17102025
CUSTOMER: GRIDCO

Without Prejudica .
Sl PARTICULARS Referonce Amount In RS,
1 Maonthly Fuel Price Admstmant _ Caoaf & Ol
Coal Annexura-1 28710594
o1 Annexure-2 (76.70,508)
2 Import cost agiustment Anneaure-3 557
3 Hetamoaunt of BilE$-2] 2,10,40,645
4 Less, Almeady Claimed in Hall Yeardy Fuel Price .
E Hat Amount to ke Bitled In Anntal Fuel Price Adjustment Invelco 2,10,40,845
hunrha .fk’cmn\aj
Manager {Flnance)
Odisha Power Generation Comporation Lid
ter Ehubpneswar
T E
A
N, .
) ﬁﬂ\@ /




ves'oL'z8'c H2[ 13 968'5Y'C08LE"L WLOL
LEG'ZH' 12 ¥S56'0 55'6589'1 Sbrizie LgEoL ZE'LEZE | S9K'T VEZLUEY'TE %05'6 sz-dag
G62'LL'TE 9998t LIVt tLolee L'S60) Z6LIeE | SO¥E yyYeTvS'eL %056 gz-Bny
Z89°cH'sE CIOFL 00'969'L svalic 159608 Z6'LEEE | 5T B0 LG0T %058 sz-nr
626'C6'1S TVEL T yiveL's gLalze 199691 Z6'112¢ | sev'e LETyL'29'ce %056 gZ-unp
vaa'2esL’L 02695 0L rorzee 19°9694 E'Lze | sov'e EEL'ET'S0'LE %056 sz-feyw
208'65'92 GabL'L gy ZLL'L 2e'GLEE 199691 Ze'Lize | sov'z 91T BT'6L'EL %056 gz-idy
(i} 6 8 L 9 G v £ z 3
wad WoM

gomfoxel'sy | umiosied | swisy | onvox mum__wu_%m oxﬂwuz :;hhquz Y v

a3Tug g oL | 0371938 01 | ganIoay | (parenjep 018 oD 0D 000IH9 .%coo...é YIuoy
IHINTYIAAA [TvILNaERAda | sy adud | syl voes do asva | Aooasva lwovd 1vau o} podxg

OAYV QLM {ADD VLY
oo
NOLLYLS HIMOL WALIHL 81 Z 2 1# LINN
4 QUNYANNY 9Z-5Z0Z LNIFWLSNIOY NOILYIHVA 301 T304 ATHLNOW




s
HOUJANEHOD

1007 0 00 2wren)

oz ¥ T " oveimiwer 1

g ___|woo I 5T : (EOYCPESELY | OGISRN9T _ |
9L | oSy IOy NCIRE OTINriEart Y [orEs 6L

C¥¥

oYL |COwest  loonoroed fe GETEIL

N L _jormezee L
ST i T .

aﬂﬂm.

¥-42 HEA DD S0 1500 DOVIUEZAY CELLHOEA 40 HOWYINITYY)




S S € Y1 7 17 T Twaenn Ja
IPHIEOCYEE | COESLIE) aTRw R | Wiy TR OOOCE'ES ¥
[TEFeEes ) Wt YOIOEGRO0LE | | LUTIET 75 R IE
CeraarTety | ez OGSt | o0 Tl
CCIEAPTYLEE | DOELLNEE | LS ILFINYL9E | HE¥LL TLRrL O
[cEstetaorel  [wossett | sreefovicsr | frws STTRORLT S0
wcirazoner [ svioiew EFPOTLTRNSE | SPIU 75 a3
n
A
sl WD ey [esmimes -
1693 o 035 Rursop Houdnasnoa| 3
T T vemn BETLNE | RESTE . eiWevora YT A irE EiirLir . ;
| - - ISR IO | Gh0aL CLYETEE [Cyey . TTert L TEFT LSy L - 13
U —__ Itraorie_ [uend [ i LI0TET 1= YEL DL B wEIOWEY Towwt : . I G
= 1 T linfrseniw | evmn [l UL SEETYOL CUOLEVET . I DOLIEs g |
- R [tFTcrwsCIe [ 26TI0T 1 0G6605T | MSEIE [ WOTLLYSE LTS G
- ORI | S6 W (737 o N T TY, GO U . A 15 ~ T [T
N UG I 171 17, N | - S K T . moawwet _leroereyt |-~ ] Y}
[ o noONHD et yg agdemes | LAiRD T A Tinf:
ANDEYI [ i) - [areey ¢ivgt TvOD
. NN RRD e tg0gnAVaLM ~
1003 Jo g uriop nowamnshoa | soa oo FniEnd o —_E.Qa
— Tapg o7 .
. TR £ 77y WD O £ 75 (0 4.y S U (W - ¢ DU C 0
|orrEbryre: | ordstn INEIYECONT | OFEGR rovEC: e _ Tevgaver 20Ev
{TEIVLLECEL | ¥SovisEl TOEROISYIT_ | S¥LsIT fRarIOr {TEVEL EQLIEE _ [veres _
e B SILXTACEL 61| GZEYY| eTTnrT  [wtert | IesaniE BRHETST
ST | oowaiT [Tt | Sreey 1005 GE HER ) T WV
SENOFTOOTET_ | 1CCREATT ZVLTTICETLT | K TIT SYIIvEa Y LY ST
(Irétoorsest  |soran STSORTUOL _ | Z5RT BSSIITY (o ead | coemeie . | OORUOGTE
UnVRG IaAlos TN HD won ¥d
ANROWY il - Txrtred men} TYoD
- - =) R Lesososvaus o
1602 jo 2015 Jupory RoUdHNEHOD | 1eDieno




|taus aza} 15704 968'37'E0'9E"E Lol
Obz0nZ0 | L EcOvL | 94vSsio  {(Livorvl) (assoo 00’5 00001 [ Z5i6b'ta | 0F'208'ea yZLZOEY'EE %086 |STdas
VOGIB'Z0 | 69°BOB'EL | £9BES'E  [(REORERI} {zo10°0) 00°5E 00004 0000k | THLEYYO | POGLEZD prreTYs'se %056 |Szhny
0oges'zo  [ocozece | eeseste  [iveovrtl {6865°0) oose 0000L pooot | esi6Y'Y9 | 05avE'Z0 00725 +0vZ %056 |sTir
osersze  |ooezees |vassrie  [{a2'2E'w) {53650 0058 0000E 0000 EL6Y'YD | 06°GVE'Z9 LET YL LG %056 |szunr
Zreazes | 161vivs | esono’zy  [(BovoD'ol) {z62170) 00'SE o000t 00001 ZTIBY'YE | ZLSOTED EELETS0E %058 [STACW
ogzer'en | feesoyr | soEsgzo  |lsso'soe {085t 0} 00'seE 00001 0000} TEIBY'YD | OF26V'E0 02T BTBLRE wce  |sdy
£ z} b4 [T [ a z 9 ] [ £ z )
0035 X £} 5 a..n.___,w:.”."_,_ﬁn_ okl sox s |soausyl  wed mn yay v
01°06 oned cal O4H G3TBIAOL | ot Ty, | ALY HO AN NG| O AID |NOIDMA]| T IS 00UIED  [ycygn myl MHOW
TYLLNS YIS0 WOYd 1YSH | ADDSSYE | DAV ALM | 35vE DAV O1M 01 yodx3
BUTEEEEEIL
[le]
HOUV.LS HIMOd TVINEIHLBI 27 b # 11NN
Z-oinxauuy 9z-520% INSWLSNIQY HOLLVIMYA 3218d T3nd ATHLNOW

NOVADSH




s G seLrony | £55'91'10'S | 556'008

IEVONLG'S | £vESe SEE'SERT | LEO'ML 0s9'6E | tvi'esey 000'E9 §25°68'8¢8'S gzyv6zs | gT-dog
225'00'98's | E2L62L 816'v8'05 | GO6'EL 69 sor'ezsy's | oposrz | LeZOsvEY gz68Ls | SZ-Env
tez'os'vey | £26'84S 8T'69° 5288 8£0's 6EO'6L'ELY [-T:8 514 SZ-r
g69'61 '8y | 196°€8G EZOiVLT | 9ZE'EL goriE | SOL'CE'SD 5E6'%6 LIF'EE'06'E 60p°0Z5 | GZ-unp
ILPEE06'E | BavazS EE5TIR'SO'T | 2vi'rL ozs eyl | T20'9E sE 000'Zs 648'8L°00'Y 681210 | sz-few
628'84'09'y | 881219 0TE'E6’'s. | 659'vL 190°201 | B9L'00°89°T | OOLLE LEP'LLTLE £5TE5E | SEdv
*5y U] anyuA (iAo "5y U] ONIRA ojey | (iAo | sy ujomes | (iAo | sy uonrea | {dbAD

#1510 NOLLAWNSNOD asyHOuNd g0 H1NOW

i)

§2-520Z-007:40 LSOD IOVHIAY Q3 LHDIZM 30 NOILVINITVYD




rLpL'ey's ipnar'or's | SCL00Y be:Drig i 4 556'004 _
99699'68 teZeLITOr | CiPEsL | aveloriE L res18 | 0s96E OSOEL'LE [T 0Ba'sE'EY'Y €T ELL [
[T C6H'SBEr'Y [z1§37] 998"ty 6Z0659L9 | 00839 EIL'SE'VE'L [ia ] SHOSEISE [T gE-bmy)
LYo 0L ISE |LZ6BLS | MIETLE JEG5ELt0 | BEOS 026'99'09'C 196 €85 SZ-in[|
¥oOrz0s 0L8'05°09°E 196 €65 BSU'ST'ET 153'56£"19 E9¥LE SEY'gT'LS SSE 6 CIETLOE [LLEE] GZ-ung
TLL8L65 CeeleTe | E9r9Zs 682'15'88 RSm0Ze | OZIIvL 196°80'1E 00025 B5T ILYRE TG ST
Z5a1L09 S6ZIZY0'E | 6AL'29 | £56%9739 Bl0gSzIa | vaoioL EGS0E'STE 000'ZLE 749662 AT L gzt

[HET syuonea | {1Mr&D Ty UL ANRA ooy {rfio “SH V[ 0AITA (&b 'SH U] ONjeA {Mmrfo
ey ogTAang Wams Buisarn HGHLJWASNGD ISYHDIINA a0 HLNOW
o

97520204 40 LS0D IDVHIAY QILHEITM 40 HOIWARI WD




Annoxure-3

PETAILS OF IMPORT MADE DURING THE YEAR

202526 Encrgy Charge

Month Impart in KWh
Apr-25 39,32,25,515
May-25 35,54,05,153
Jun-25 35,86,20,965
Jul-25 20 40,59,39,658
Aug-25 39,74,41,858
Sep-25 Y 1] 37,86,67,859
Fuet Price Adjustment 2,10,40,088 |

Total | 390 2,35,13,45,094

Total Energy Charga Hs 2,35,13,45,094
Units exporied KWhr 1.38,03.48,856
Average Rale Rs/kWhr 1.7034
Cost of Power imporled Rs 664
GRIDCO Oeducted Towards Import CostRecovery 1,221
Balance to be adjusted | Rs 557

Import Cost Detalls for FY 2025-26 Amount [n Rs
Excass

Deducted by

Month OPGC Claimed GRIDCO Accoptad GRIBCO In
. Monthly Involce

Apr—g_s_ -

Moy-25 d

Jun-25 _ -
Jul-25 kD) [:K] 33
Aug-25 . =
Sep-25 _555 1.15E 603
Total 585 1,221 636
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GOVERNMENT OF ODISHA
FOREST & ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

At el

NOTIFICATIO
Bhubaneswar, Dated the 453 April.2021

Fuel Paliey of the State of Odisha

No, FE-ENV3-ENV-0014-2017/_ 7Y £ /FAE., Hon'ble Supreme Court of
tndia in the matter of “M.C Mehta Vrs. UOI” in WP, {Civil) 13029 of 1985 directed on
24.10.2017 to ban the use of petcoke and furnace oll In Indusiries tn the NCA state of
Haryana, Uttar Pradesh and Rajasthan. Subsequently, Hon'ble Supreme Court directed
in the same wrlt petition on 17.11.2017 observing that the pollution caused by
petcoke and furnace oil Is not a problem confined anly to the NCR, butappearsto be a
prebfem faced by a'most all the State and Union Territories in the Country and
Hon'ble Apex Court directed all the State Governments and Unlon Yerritories to
conslder taking similar measures as have been taken by the Govt. of India and CPCH.

Hon'ble Supreme Court of Indla in WP{C) No. 13029/1985 in order dtd.
25.07.2018 allowed on use of petcoke as feed stack in industries such as Cement, Lime
Kiln, Caleluen Carbide unlt, Gaslfication unlt and also In WP(C) No. 1302971985 in order
dtd. 09.10.2018 allowed use of raw pat coke for manufacturing of Calcined Pet Coke
{CPL) having sulphur content <3.5% for making anode in the Aluminium industry and
recommended to treat the emission of 50;of Calcined Pet Coke (CPC) unil in FGD
system having sulphur removal effidency more than 90%.

In pursuant to the above orders of Hon'ble Supreme Court of iIndla, the
Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Govt. of India, New Delhi vide Notiflcation No.
42/ 2015-2020, did. 23.10.2018 amended the import policy condition of pet coke
by prohibiting import of pet coke for fuel purpose and allowed Import of petcoke for
use in [ndustrles such as Cement, Lime Xiln, Calcdlum Carbide, Gasification, Graphite
Electrode, Aluminlum Industry & Caleined Pet Coke units.

Central Pollution Cantrol Board, New Delhi in their latter did. 26.06.2020 have
recommended the SPCBs to include LSHS {Law Sulphur heavy stock) oll as industrial
fuel In place of furnace oil while formulating fuel policy to reduce emission of 50;.
CPC8 has alse suggested In thelr direction dtd. 23.08.2019 that the oll refinenes can
produce low sulphur oil tike slurry oil, LSHS and 100, if demand on FO is reduced.

Hon'hle Natlons! Green Tribunal {NGT} in the matter of "Sumit Kumar Ves.
State af Himachal Pradesh and Others” In O.A. No. 67/2019 read with O.A. No.
138/2019 observed that "Considering the various directions and orders of Hon'ble
Suprame Court regording use of petcoka ond furnoce oil contoining kigher Sulphur, it Is
required that States end UTs including Himocho! Pradesh, formuigte fuel policies
regording vse of pel coke ond £O in lfght of Hon'ble Supreme Court order dtd.
24.10.2017 {banning use of pet coke and FO tn NCA Stotes) ond 17,11.2017 (suggesting

A




States / UTs to toke simitor meosures) ond forther Hon'ble Supreme Court order did.
13.12.2017, 05.02.2018 ond 25.07.2018 allowing vse of pet coke in industries /
processes which use pet coke ond furnace ol either as feed stock (Colcined pet coke
{CPL) units, Alurninium Industries) or where they get obsorbed olang with product In
manufacturing process {cement, lime kiln, cokclum corblde industries). it is relevant to
mention that use of Raw Petroleum Coke {RPC) in CPC units hos been allpwed with
condition of 905 recovery of S0, emission. The some principle moy be followed in
fndustriol processes where use of FO os feed stock is considered by Stotes/ UTs*
and alsoissved direction to CFCB to ensure compliance from the States/ UTs.

The Government of Odisha vide Notification No. 22737, did. 07.11.2017 inF &
E Dept, has allowed the use of Petcoke as an "Approved fuel” as per the provision of
Alr {Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981, subject 1o candition that the industry
/ processes Interested to use pet coke as fuel shall obtain prier consent of SPCB,
Qdisha and Install required air pollution control system 1o achieve the emission
standards as prescribed from time to time and cemply with the conditions stiputated
by the competent authositles. Memo of 1his notification was forwarded to MoEF & CC
and CPCB, New Deathi.

Keeping in view of the directions of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India and order
of Hon'ble tational Green Tribunal emphaslzing on switching cver 1o alternative and
cleaner fuels, the following policy is fremed for regulation and control use of Petcake,
Furnace Qil and use of ather fuels in the State of Odlsha.

The following fuel will be allawed far use in the State of Odisha.

tiguefied Petroleum Gas {LPG)

Lguefied Natucal Gas {LNG)

Piped Natural Gas (PNG)

High Speed Diesel {HSD}

Blo Gas

Bio—Fuel {Bio-Ethancletc}

Refuse Derived Fuel {ROF): Ta be used in Cement Kiln and Waste to Energy

Plant or any other unit allowed by the Central Government/ State

Government.

h. Blomass as fuel {like Bagasse, Briquettes/ Pellets etc.}/ Agriculture refusef
dung cake}.

i. Low Sulphur Heavy 5tock {LSH5)

mA e oo

=

Light Diese] Oil {LDO}
Coal/Lignite
Firewood/wood charcoal
. Naptha / Propane f Gasoline f Hydrogen f Methane

g —F




n} Pet Coke:

Use of Petcoke Is allowed as feedstock in industrles/ processes where S0; gets
abscrbed such as Cement, Lime/ Dolo Kiln, Calcined Pet Coke {CPL], Aluminium
Smelter, Gasificatlon, Caldum Carbide & Graphite Electrode subject to
ahtaintng spedific consent to establishf aperate from State Pollution Control
Board, Odisha under the provision of Alr {Prevention and Contral of Pollution)
Act, 1981.

The above-mentloned Industries will be required *o Install all the requisite alr
pollution eontrol systems so as to achlave the emission standards for
Particufate Matter (PM) & 50; concentration and provide minimum stack
height as prescribed in Environment (Protection] Act, 1986 and the Rules
framed there under as amended from time to time,

All the above-menttoned units using pet coke shall install onllne continuous
emisslon monitoring system for parameters of PM 8 50;with cannectivity to
the server of the SPCB for transmission of real-time onfine data within a period
of 6 months.

Raw pet ceke having Sulphur content [ess than 3.5% shall be allowed for use in
CPC units with condition of more than 90% recovary of SO; emission through
flue gas desulphurisation systent.

Use of Calcined pet coke Is alfowed as feed stock or in manufacturing process
in the industries as mentloned abave and shall not be supplied to any other
Industry.

Any other unit other than the above intend to use petcoke as feedstock or in
manufacturing processes, where sulphur will be absorbed in the process will
have to obtdin prior permission from State Pollutlon Cantro! 8oard on case-to-
case basis.

No ether Industry / processes shall be aflowed to use petcoke as fuel.

Conside:ing the requirement of grinding, sizing, and beiguetting of pet coke
before using in the approved Mndustdes as meationed in this palicy, the
existing pet coke grinding, sizing and briquetting units are allowed to use ravw
pet coke and they shall not supply the procassed raw pet coke to the industries
not covered in this pollcy and maintain a recard for verification of SPCB.
Establishment of standalone new pet coke grinding, sizing & briquetting units
shall not be allowed.

o) Fuenace O)

Industries using furnace oil shall install scrubbing system for more than 90%
recovery of 50;emission and provide stack height as per the following formula
within & months.

H= 14{Q)**{Where, H Is the physical stack height & Q is emission rate of S0, in
Kgfhrl.
All the Industries using furnace ofl shalt shift to use of cleaner fue) with low

Sulphur content such as Low Sulphur Heavy Stock (LSHS)/ Light Diesel OIf (LDO)
/ Gas, replacing furnace ofl within a period of Two years.




The new industrles coming up in the State which is either under construction
or in upcoming stage shall abide by the conditions of Stata fuel polfcy.

The State fuel policy shall be subject to the compliance of orders and directian
of Hon'ble Supreme Court of Indiaf High Court/ NGT and guidelines Issued by Central
Govt.fCPCB/ State Govr. and can be amended with the approval of State Government.
By the order of Governor

/L-J—P S’L\--"—:‘_‘./

Addl. Chlef Secretary to Govt.
Memotto_ 7L &6 jaid. 19Dl 24

Copy forwarded to the Qirector, Printing Statlonery & Publication, Odisha,
Madhupatna, Cutlack for information and necessary action. He |5 requested to publish
the Notification bearing 5.R.0 No. and date in the Extra Qrdinary issue ¢f the Odisha
Gazente and provide 100 copies of the same to this Department.

“ 12la4fal
Director, Env-cum-Spetial Secmarly tzu Gowvt

MemoNo._ZUEF /o 19 .04. 1)

Copy to Secretary, MoEF & CC, Indlra Paryavaran Bhawan, 3" Floor, Vayu Wing,
JorBagh Road, New Delhi-11003 for Infgrmation.

Drector, Env-cum-SpecIal|5e cret:!ﬂ %q é‘Jvt.

memoNo__ 7 LB  jod 19 .04, 91

1 [A)
Copy 1o the Principal Secretary, Department af lndustrleﬁhaiﬁla Bhawan,

Govt. of Odisha (or information.
Diractor, Env-cum-SpeciaEFucmla%h”.{ amrt.
MemoNo.__ TU8F  jad. 15 .04. &1

Copy to Member Secretary, Central Pellution Contrel Board, Paribesh Bhawan,

East Arjun Nagar, New Delhi -110032 for informatian.
Director, Env-cum-Spectl Secrléiaﬂﬁ Gowvt,

Memato._ 1UAD _sad. 19.04. &

Copy 1o Member Secretary, SPC Board, Odisha, Bhubaneswar A/118, Nila
Kantha Magar, Unlt-8, Bhubaneswar -751012 for information.

Pirector, Env-cum-Sgeclal nl?élé‘rlvad Gov
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Members of Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of Odisha Power Generatlon Corporation
Limited(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315 March 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes In Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements including a
summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatoery information{herein after referred
to as “Standalone Financial Statements”}.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financtal statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended {"Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs{financial position) of the Company as at March 31%, 2024,
and its profit {financial performance including comprehensive income) changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Oplnion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs), issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities of the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company In
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI),
together with the athical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

(AT

opinion. /,."_.(;..fr{;“
e \f
i £%

Head Office : Office Unit- 430 & 431. 4th Floor, Esplanade One Mall, 721, Rasulgarh. Bhubaneswar-731010, Odisha
£.mail : anilmihir@gmail.com, Tel.: 7004003919, 9437030925
Branch Office : ¢ BERHAMPUR o RAYAGADA @ MUMBAI o RANCHI © PATNA o LU
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Emphasis of Matter

Inviting attention to Note No 35(iv} to the financial statements, the company is committed to comply
the norms of utillsing Ash generated in campliance to the Notlfication of Ministry of Environment,
Forest and Climate Change, Government of India vide ne. 5.0. 5481(E) dated 31/12/2021 and
amended dated 31/12/2022 in the first compliance cycle by 31.3.2027. However, the company has
made a provision amounting to Rs 23.61 Cr towards non-refundable environmental compensation
charges @ 10% on shortfall in stipulated ash utilization during the financial year.

Our oplnion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters:

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
In our audit of the Standalone Financlal Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financlal Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinlon thereon, and we do not provide a separate oplinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, is not applicable to the Company as it is not a listed
company.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s Baard of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other Information. The
ather information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis
of financial performance highlights: Board’s report including Annexure to Board's Report, Business
Responsibillty Report, Report on Corporate Governance, Shareholders information and other

information In Integrated Annual Report but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance and conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materlally inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to raport in this regard.

When we read the full Annual report which is expected to be made avallable to us after the date of
this auditors’ report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are raquired
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Sec 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparatlon of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, Including other cornprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Sec 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and the desipn, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensurlng the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation

of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and falr view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the.going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternate but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseelng the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatemnent when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or ervor and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professienal scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thase risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk
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7 & Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
t" : procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are
{ also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate Internal
% d financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operating

o effectiveness of such controls.
) * Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
1_ iR estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
2 or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
’ concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In
.. our auditer’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
Cm disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based an the audit
) evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
sy may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,
R * Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the
b underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves Ffair presentation.

f
-

i . Al

et Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
; - knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
P quantitative materfality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of aur audit work and in

N evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
! the standatone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with the governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned seepe and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence and to communicate with them all
. relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on eur independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”} issued by the Central

Government In terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books

: and records of the Company as we considered approprlate and according to the information and

explanatlons given to us, we give in “Annexure A” to this report, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the sald Order to the extent applicable.
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2. In compliance to the directions of the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India {CAG) under
Section 143(5} of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” and “Annexure €” to this report statement on
the matters specified therein.

3. Asrequired by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(i)
(i)

(ift)

(iv)

{v)

{vi}

{vil)

{wili)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
cur knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our epinion, proper books ef account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss-{including Other Comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreemant with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companles {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended;

Section 164{2) of the Act regarding disqualification of Directors is not applicable to the
Company by virtue of Notification Mo. G.5.R. 463(E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements of the Campany and the aperating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure D”;

As per Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India, and Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the
Government Companles. Accordingly, reporting in accardance with requirement of
provisions of section 19718} of the Act is not applicable to the Company;

With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditar's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations of Rs 1,131.67 Cr on its

financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements. Refer Note- 38{b) under contingent

liabilitles to the Standalone Financial Statements;

As explained to us the company has not entered into any derivative contract and has not

foreseen any material losses on Jong term contracts, hence no provision has been made on

this account.

Since the company do not have to transfer any amount to the Investor Education &

Protection Fund as required under section 125 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 [previously

Sec. 205C of Companies Act, 3956), delay in transferring any amount to the Fund does not

arise,

(i The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other

than as-QLsel sed in all the relevant notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either
ually l)éirl the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from
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borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recarded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or pravide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

({ii)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in all the relevant notes to accounts, no funds {which are materlal either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity {“Funding Parties”}, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries;

{iil}Based on the audit procedures that have been consldered reasonable and appropriate
In the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause d(i) and dfii} of Rule 11{e), contain any material
misstatement.

e. As stated in Note 18{iv) to the standalone financial statements

{a) The final dividend proposed, declared and pald relating to previous year ending 31%
March 2025 by.the Company during this financial vear amounting to Rs 111.88 Cr @ Rs
50 per share which is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act.

(b} No Interim dividend has been declared or paid during this financlal year by the
Company.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintatning its books of account for the financial year ended 31 March, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trall {edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for ali relevant transactions recorded in the software, Further, during

the course of our audit, we did not come across any Instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with,

ANIL MIHIR & ASSOCIATES

Place: Bhubaneswar . CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN-303038

{CA Mihlr Kumar Sahu)
Partner

UDIN: 25053968BMLIFC3297 M. No.-053968
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ANNEXURE — A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUBDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’ section of our
report of even date to the members of Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited on the
Standaleone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025.

L

a) (A) The Company has maintained records showing particulars, Including quantitative details
and sltuation of its property, plant and equipment, which needs to be updated by giving make,
model, type, serlzl number and Identification numbers etc. of such assets.

(B) The Company has maintalned proper records showing full particulars of Intanglble assets,

b} The Compahy has a regular programme of annual physical verification of its property, plant
and equipment. In accordance with this programme, the property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,
however minor discrepancies are properly dealt in books of accounts. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its property, plant and equipment.

¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of Immovable properties are held
in the name of the company, except the followlng:

Description of | Valuein | Held in the | Whether Period held | Reason  for
No. | Property Crores | name of promoter, indicate not belng
{Subject Director or | range, held in name
to thelr relative or | whera of company
Note) employees appropriate
Banahrapali, Permissive No 1998.59 Pormissive
Bargad, 551 possession of possession
Telenpali, Government of forest
Kusuralol, Forest land. land, for
Khadam, non-forest
Sahajbahal. purpose,
_i{area - 22646 — —+- — zecelved on
Acres) 02.04.1998
Telenpali Permissive in favour of |1999-2000 | Permissive
Banahrapali 137 possession of | previous possession
{Area 69.83 Gavernment | shareholder for non-
Acres) revenue /s AES, IB forest use
forest land. Valley received an
Corpoeration, 28.06.1999
Banharpali
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. sl Description of [ Valuein | Held In the | Whether Pericd held { Reason  for
No. | Property Crores | name of promuoter, indlcate not belng
; {Subject Director or | range, held in name
to thelr relative or | where of company
N Note) employees appropriate
Kumbharbandh 8.85 Handing over | No 1996 Possession
- 3 Ash Pond possession of Letter
- {Area 452.00 Reservoir received on
Acres) Land 30.12.19%8
4 Ash Plpe Line 5.06 Permissionto | No 2016 Row
(Area 50.92 use Permission
- Acres) vide letter
no. 8714 dt,
12.-4.2016
- s MGR Forest Land 54.96 | Permissionto | No 2015-2017 [ Permissive
(Area 428.09 use possassion
Acres) for non-
. forest use
received on
27.05,2017
- & Reserve  Forest 6.14 Permissionto | No 1987-1988 | Permissive
- (Area 313.69 use Possession
, Acres) on 21.11,87

NOTE: - for SI. No 2 to 5 proportionata average value have been considered for reporting.

{d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment {including right-to-use
. of assets) and Intangible assets during the year.

(e} Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitlon) Act, 1988 {as amended in
2016) and rules made there under.

il. a) The inventorles have been physically verified by the management during the financial year. In
our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the procedures of
physlcal verification of inventories followed by the-management are generally reasonable and
adequate In commensurate with the size and nature of the business. Discrepancies on physical
verification notlced are less than 10% value in the aggregate in each class of Inventories which are

* properly dealt in the books of account.
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company with the bank are not in agreement with the books of account and those are set out

below:

Name of | Aggrepate | Nature of | Quarter Amount of | Amount Difference

the Bank working Current Ended working of working | {Rs. Crore)
: capital Assets capital capital as | (C=B-A)

limits offered as disclosed as | per Books | ‘C*
* sanctioned | Security per of
{Rs. Crore) quarterly Accounts
statements | (Rs. Crore)

. {Rs. Crore} | ‘B’
. ar
N Union 500 June 30, | 801.97 809.08 7.11
' Bank of 2024
- India

Union 500 Refer September 655.76 660.96 5.20
: Bank of Note 30, 2024
; India Below .
- Union 500 December 844.37 829.37 {15.00)
N Bank  of 31,2024

India

Union 500 March 31, 206.66 820.46 13.80

Bank of 2025
’ Indla
’ NOTE-:
- Security: Cash Credit Facllity is secured by First exclusive Hypothecation Charge on Raw

materials, Consumable Spares and Book Debts of Unit 1&2 and Unit 3&4 and Second exclusive
Charge on all the Iimmovable and movable assets ereated out of the Term Loan from PFC Ltd,

- REC Ltd and Indian Bank and also immovable properties charged to PEC Ltd, REC Ltd and Indian
Bank,
. iit. The Company has an existing Investment in equity shares of Odisha Coal and Power Limited

(OCPL, a joInt venture jointly controlled entity) amounting to Rs. 217.23 Crore as at 31* March
* 2025 against 51% holding,
a. (A) Further furnished Corporate Guarantee, security to joint venture company which are
as follows:
{Rs. InCrore) . ___...

- [

T, Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances  in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year
- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures
- - Associates

’ - Others

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries
- Joint Ventures 263,84
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- Assoclates
- Others

{B) Based on the audit procedures carrled on by us and as per the information and
explanation pgiven to us, the company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of
loans and guarantees or security to parties other than subsidiaries, Joint ventures and
assoclates,

b. In respect of the aforesald investment, guarantees, securlties and loans, the terms and
conditions under which such investment were made, guarantees provided, securities
provided, loans were granted, and based on the avallable information and explanation,
these are not prejudicial to the company's interest, except issuance of corporate guarantee
without any monetary consideration from subsldiary.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basls of our
examination of the records of the company, it s observed that, during the year no loan or
advances, in the nature of loan, given to its associates or joint venture company.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, there is no loan given falling due during the
year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdue of
existing loans given to the same party.

e. According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records, it is observed that, the company has not granted any loan or

. advances In the nature of loan to promoters and related parties, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

. iv. In our opinTon and according to the Information and explanations given te us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Sectlon 185 and 186 of the Act, to the extent applicable,
in respect of loans granted to subsidiary companles and investments made in the subsidiary
and joint venture companies and guarantees issued in favour of Banks for subsidiary

- companies.
- v. The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemead to be deposits
within the meaning of Section 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and rules framed there under to the
- - extent notifiad,
Vi The Central Government has prescribed for the maintenance of cost records under section

148(1) of the Act, read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit} Rules 2014. On the basls ol
limited review of the books of accounts malntained by the Company, we are of the opinion
that prima facie, the relevant records are maintalned. However, we have not carried oul
detalled examination of the same to determine whether they are accurate and complete.

vil. a) Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, In our opinton, the Company is generally regular in depositing

, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, Excise Duty, VAT, cess, Electricity Duty, & othar ntalerial
Intutory dues with the appropriate authorities, and there are no undisputed statutory dus as
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at 31% March 2025 outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the following dues of Sales tax,
Service tax, G5T and Income Tax have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes:
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Name of the | Nature of | Period to | Total Amount Forum where dispute
Statute dues which the { amount of | deposited/adju | is pending
amount demand sted
relates Rs, in | Rs. In Crore
Crore
Orissa Sales | Sales Tax FY-1952-93 0.13 0.13 Sales Tax Tribunal,
Tax Act & 1993-94 Odisha
1994-95 0.01 0.01 Sales Tax Tribunal,
Qdisha
1996-97 0.01 Nil Sales Tax Tribunal,
Odisha, remanded to
assessing authority
1997-98 0.03 0.01 Sales Tax Tribunal,
QOdisha, allowed the
appeal and the matter
Is pending for
correction
Goods and | GST 2017-18to 2258 2.26 Commissioner
Service Tax 2020-21 {Appeal), GST, CE &
Act Custom .
Goods and | GST 2018-19to 228 Nil Addl. Commissioner,
Service Tax 2019-20 GST, CE, Rourkela
Act
Income Tax | Income Tax | 2005.06 & 0.74 N1 CIT{A), Natlonal
Act, 1961 2006-07 Faceless Appeal
Centre
2007-08 0.e3 Nil Hon’ble High Court of
Orissa.
2016-17 1.29 0.10 CIT(A), National
Faceless Appeal
Centre.. ._.__... ___ |
201819 0.15 015 CIT{A}, National
Faceless Appeal
Centre
2014-19 0.54 0.11 CIT(A), National
Faceless Appeal
_ Centre
Finance Act, | Service Tax | 2016-18 144 0.35 Asst/Dy
1994 Commissioner,
Central Tax & Central
o Excise
TOTAL 29.81 3.12
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vill.  According to the records of the Company examined by us, the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the company has
not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books
of account, in the tax assessment under the Income-Tax Act ,1961 as income during the year.

iz, {a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
axplanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
horrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.
{b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basls of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank
or financial institutlon or government or any government authority.

{c) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpases for which they were obtalned.
(d} According to the Informatlon and explanatlens given to us and on an overall examination
of the standalone financlal statement of the company, we report that the Company has not
utilised funds ralsed on short-term basis for long-term purposes.

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the standalone financlal statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiarles, assotiates or joint ventures,

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companles,

% {a) The company has not raised any money by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Publlc Offer
{including debt instrument). Accardingly, this clause 1s not applicable.
{b) According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that, the company has allotted
equity shares of Rs. 203 Crore in favour of Government of Odisha during the reporting year.

¥, {a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and as represented by the

management and based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and In

accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, no case of fraud by the Company

——orany-fraud-on-the-Company byits-officersoremployees has beenmoticed or reported doring
the year.

{b} During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out
in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companles {Audit and Auditors}
Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government, Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(xi)(b} of the order is not applicable.

{c} As a part of Whistle Blower Policy and as per the information and explanation available to
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ANIL MIHIR & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company
and therefore reporting under clause (xif} of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations glven to us, the transactions
with the related partles are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable IND AS in Note No 36.

{2} In our opinion the Company has an adequate Internal audit system by an external professional
CA firm which commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

{b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit lssued to the Company
during the year till date in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procadures,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them and hence, provisions of sectlon 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicabile to the company.

{a) The Company s not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

{b) The Company has not conducted Non-Banking Financial/Housing Finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi){b} of the Order is not applicable.

{c) The Company Is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group does not have any CIC.
Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3{xvi){d) are not applicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{xvlil)
of the order Is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial labilities,
other information accompanyling the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its ligbilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this Is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting Is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilittes falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due,
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x. The unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) of Rs. 5.90 Cr has been

deposited In an account "OPGC UNSPENT CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACCQUNT 2025"
on 29.04.2025 as specified In Schedule V1| in compliance to the provisions of Section 135 of

Companles Act 2013.
ANIL MIHIR & ASSOCIATES

Place: Bhubaneswar CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN-303038
Date: 05.07.2025 C'%%'@
{CA Mihir Kumar Sahu}
Partner
UDIN: 25053968BMLIFC3297 M. No.-053958
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

ANIL MIHIR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regilatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date to the members of Odisha Power Generation Corporatlfon Limited an the Standalone Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 March 2025

Nof

Direction

Reply

1

''Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If yes, the implications of processing
of accounting transaction outside IT systemn on
the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial Implications, if any, may be stated.

Accounts of all departments are covered under
IT system called SAP ERP implemented In OPGC
since 2016. FI&CO under SAP is used for
accounting purpose. However, monitoring of
Bank guarantees through SAP ERP is not
ensured for operational convenience.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off
debts/loans/finterest/ etc. made by a lender to
the company due to the company's inability to
repay the loan? if yes, the financial impact may
be stated.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific
schemes from central/state agencles were
properly accounted forfutilized as per its term
and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

There Is no restructuring of an existing loan or
case of waiver/write off debts/loansfinterest
ete. made by the lending institutions during
the current financial year.

During the current financial year under audit,
Rs 203 Crore has been received from the
Government of Odisha as Equity Share Capital
and has been properly accounted for and
there is no deviation in its utilisation {Note No
17).

Moreover, an amount of Rs, 1.86 Cr to be
refunded to Ministry of non-conventional
Energy, Govt. of India on account of
Impalrment of projects, The same is
accounted for under the head “payable to
Government” for construction of Minl Micro
Hydel Projects. Please refer foot note of Note
o 20 (d) of Financial Statements.

Place: Bhubaneswar

Date: 05.07.2025

UDIN: 25053968BMLIFC3297

ANIL MIHIR & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN-303038

DTN
{CA Mihir Kumar SaRl)
Partner

M. No.-053968
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ANIL MIHIR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE-C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
sectlen of our report of even date to the members of Odisha Power Generation Corpaoration
Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

No

Direction

Reply

1

Adequacy of staps to prevent encroachment
of idle land owned by Company may be
examined. In case land of the Company Is
encroached, under litigation, not puttouse or
declared surplus, detafls may be provided.

According to Information and explanations
given to us, there is no case of land under
litigation and there is no encroachment of the
Company owned land. However, the company
has not assessed any surplus land in possessian,

Where land acquisition 15 involved In setting
up new projects, report whether settlfement
of dues done expeditiously and in a
transparent manner in all cases. The cases of
deviation may please be detailed.

The company has not acquired any land for new
projects. However, the Company acquires land
for setting of new profects through the nodal
organization of Government of Qdisha, IDCO by
placing the fund requisitioned by them.

Whether the Company has an effectlve
system for recovery of revenue as per
contractual terms and the revenue is properly
accounted for in the books of accounts in
compllance with the applicable Accounting
Standards.

The Company has an effective system for
recovery of revenue. Revenue has been
accounted for as per applicable Ind AS 115
However, an amount of R5.201.41 Cr accounted
for as Fuel price adjustment {FPA). This revenue
is under dispute on account of treatment coal
GCV.

How much cost has been Incurred on
abandoned projects and out of this how much
cost has been written off?

According to information and explanations
given to us, no project of the Company is
abandoned during this year under audit.
However, the company has abandoned five
Minl Micre Hyde!l projects namely,
1. Harbhangi, 2. Badanzla, 3. Banpur,
4. Barboria, 5, Andharbhangi funded by Ministry
of ‘non-conventional Energy, Govl, of Tndia Rs.
1.86 Cr is accounted to be refunded under the
head “payable to Government”, Please refer
foot note of Note No 20 (d} of Financial
Statement. An amount of Rs. 11.07 Cr was
charged off in the year 2016-17 under
impairment of assets.

In the cases of Thermal Power Projects,
compliance of the various Pollution Control
Acts and the impact thereof Including
utilization and disposat of ash and the policy
)of the Company In this regard, may be

<} checked and commented upon.

Complied,

» OPGC has taken Consent to Operate
{CTO) Under Water Act, 1974 & Air
Act'1981 and rules framed thereunder
which Is valid till 31.03.2026 and renewa)
application is always filed before the
stipulated period. Similafly~all required
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Chartered Accountants

Direction

Reply

Consent to Establish (CTE) are taken
under Water Act & Air Act. All consent
conditions of CTE and CTQ glven under
the mentloned acts are complled.

¥ At present OPGC complies all parameters
of new emission norms for Thermal
Power Plants-December-2015  except
norms for S02. However, to achieve the
emission norm of 502, the Company Is in
process of cammissioning of Flue Gas
Pesulfurization before the stipulated
timeline of 31.12.2026.

> OPGC complies to Hazardous & Other
Wastes Management &  Handling
Rules’2016 & has valid hazardous waste
authorization which is wvalid till
31.03.2025. Similarly Biomedical Waste
Authorization Is valid till 21.03.2026 & all
conditions mentioned in the
authorization are complied.

> OPGC also complies to Public Liabllity
Insurance Act’1991 which Is valid till
02.07.2025.

> OPGC at present does not confirm to
100% ash utilization (progressive average
around 23% only) however, OPGC has the
compllance cycle of 5 years which is valid
til 31.03.2027. OPGC has framed a
generalized Ash Utilization Policy which
has been In to forge from 26.06.2023.

Has the Company entered into revenue
sharing agreements with private parties for
extraction of coal at pitheads and it

-1 adequately-protects  the financial interest of

the Company?

Not applicable, coal mine is held and operated
by its subsidiary OCPL under Fuel supply
agreement.

Does the Company have a project system for
reconciliation of quantity/quality coal ordered
and received and whether grade of coal
moisture and demurrage etc. are properly
recorded in the books of accounts?

The Company is procuring ¢oal fram Mahanadi
Coal Fields Ltd. {MCL} and Odisha Coal & Power
Ltd. (OCPL) through a Fue) Supply Agreement
with both the suppliers and there is a regular
system of reconciliation of quantity/ quality of
coal ordered and received and grade of coal,
moisture and demurrage etc. which is properly
recorded in the books of account on the basis of
third party sampling reports.
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No

Direction

ﬁ_eplv

i How much share of free power was due to the

State Government and whether the same was
calculated as per the apreed terms and
deplcted In the accounts as per accepted
accounting norms?

No such free power is due to the State Govt.

In the case of hydroelectric projects, the water | As explained by the 'ccr'npanv the hio'&-iverslty '

discharge is as per policy / puidelines issued by
the state Government to malntain
btodiversity. For not maintainlng it penalty
paid / payable may be reported,

policy /guidelines are not applicable to It. No
penalty has been imposed during the year. Five
out of seven Mini Micro Hydel project has been
impaired, only two are running whera no
penalty Imposed during the year for non-
maintenance of bio diversity.

Place: Bhubaneswar

Date: 05.07.2025

UDIN: 25053968BMLIFC3297

ANIL MIHIR & ASSOCIATE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN-303038

e
)Rt LD
{CA Mihir Kumar Sahu)
Partner
M. No.-053968
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ANNEXURE — D TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 3 (vi) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date to the members of Qdisha Power Generation Corporation Limited on the Standalone
FInancial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financtal Controls under Clause {i} of Sub-section 3 of Secticn 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Flnanclal Reporting of Odisha Power
Generation Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as on 31% March, 2025, in conjunction with our
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and malntaining internal financia] controls
based on the Intemnal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla {"ICA)"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and malntenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of [ks business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial informatlon, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over Financial
Reporting based on our Audit. We conducted gur Audit In accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”} and the Standards en Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an Audit of interaal financial controls, both applicable to an Audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the Audit to obtaln reasenable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over finzncial reporting vas established and maintained
and if such cantrols operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur Audit Involves performing procedures to obtain Audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

——fimamciztcontrolssystem over Flnarciat Repont i ehd tisliroperating effectivéness. Our Audit of mternal

financial controls over Flnancial Reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over Financial Reparting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal contro) based on the assessed risk. The precedures selected
depend on the Auditor's judgement, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the Audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
u@dlt opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financlal reporting.

(Y Stalae
A

Meap\ngqf Internal Financial Centrols over Financial Reporting

&
.ﬁcomp}m}’s Internal financial centro! over Financial Reporting [s a process designed to provide reasonable
as__’;ance’regardlng the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial
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Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial controel over Financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures that
{1} pertaln to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recarded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only In accordance with authorisations of

management and directors of the company; and
{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
ar disposition of the company’'s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial

Statements.

Inherent Umitations of Internat financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Begause of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materjal misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal financlal controls
over Financial Reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Control over
Financial Reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our oplnion, the company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting in place and such internal financial controls aver financial reporting were operating
effectively asat 31st March 2025, based on the internzl control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financfal Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of [ndia (iCAl}.

ANIL MIHIR & ASSOCIATE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN-303038

{CA Mihir Kumar Sahu)*
Partner

UDIN; 25053968BMLIFC3297 M. No.-053968

Place: Bhubaneswar

Date: 05.07.2025




QODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LUMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

—— e ———————

(Rupaes in Cr)
118

Particulars Note Asat, As ati
L Ne, ' 31March 2025, 31 March 2024/
ASSETS : !
1 [Non-current assets : | |
a. Property, Plant and Equipment 2 | 9,109.17 5,101.08 |
b. Capital work-in-progress - Tangible 3 906.65 680.20 i
¢. Other Intangible assets s | 3.24 475 |
d. Intangible assets under development 5 . -
e. Financial Assets
{i} Investments 6 217.23 217.23;
(i) Loans 7 0.65 1.94°
{ili) Others 8 40.27 27.05
\ (iv) Trade recelvables 11 - -
i f. Deferred tax assets [Net) 22 -
g. Other non-current assets 9 69.17 122.96
Total non-current assets 10,346.38 10,155.21 .
2 |Current assets
a. Inventories 10 266.10 273.99
b. Financial Assets
i {i} Trade receivables 11 ; 894.98 1,176.75
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 . 220.83 1.09 i
{ifi} Bank Bafances other than (i} above 12 684.27 41.19
{iv} Loans 13 317 1.49
{v} Others 14 34.79 4.39
c. Current Tax Assets {Net} 15 21.43 18.62
d. Other current assets 16 5638 | 6297
Total Current Assets 2,182.05 1,580.49
| [TOTAL ASSETS . i 12,52843|  11,735.71
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES '
EQUITY !
a. Equity Share capital 17 2,323.50 2,120.50
b. Other Equity 18 2,492.86 2,071.89
Total equity 4,821.36 4,192.40
UABILITIES |
1 |Non-current liabllities !
a. Financial Liabilities
{i} Trade Payables
- Dues of micro and small enterprises - -
- Bues of creditors other than - -
micro and small enterprises
{if) Borrowings 19 5,438.62 5,861.51
{lii} Other financial liabilities 20 4,24 3.84
b. Provisions 21 75.04 74.00
c. Deferred tax lfabilities (Net} 22 I 50802  313.70 |
Tatal non-current Liabllitles i 5,025.99 I 6,253.05

BUELSESNLS T



ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

{Rupees In Cr]
Particulars Note’ Asat As at
No, 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
2 |Current liabllitles
a. Financial Liabilities
{i} Trade Payables '
- Dues of micro and small enterprises 23 14.25 1101
- Dues of creditors other than 23 268.00 268.94
micro and small enterprises
{ii} Borrowlngs 24 565.32 684.04
{lit) Other financiat lizbillties 25 748.26 204.16
b. Other current liabilities 26 8.00 108.65
c. Provisions 27 77.25 13.46
d. Current Tax Liabilities [Net} 15 - -
Total Current Wabllities ) 1,681.08 1,290.27
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES o 12,528.43 11,735.71
Notes forming part of the financlal Statements 1-46
In terms of our report attached. .
Eor Anll Mihir & Assaciates .For and on behalf of the Board t
Chartered Accountants !
Flrm Reg No: 303038E 2 :
A el g b
{CA Mihir Kumar Sahu) {Gapgan Bihari Swain} {Kedar Ranjan/Pandu} '
Partner Director {Finance} Managing Director
Membershlp No.053968 DIN: 07687872 DiN:100937847

Place : Bhubaneshwar

Date : @‘\‘L

{Basanta Kumar Sahoo)
Company Secretary




QDISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

o ) S {Rupeas InCr)
Particulars Note For the Year, For the Year
! No. ended ended '
) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
|Income ! :
| |Revenue from QOperations ! 28 3,981.77 3,721.74
Il [other Income 9 55.67 16.23
Il |Tetal Income (1 +11) . 4,037.44 3,737.97
1V |[Expenses
a. Cost of materials consumed 30 182359 $,713.35
b. Employee benefit expenses 31 109.95 111.05
. Finance costs 32 534.22 £€01.25
d. Depreciation and amortization expenses 33 307.26 295.13
e. Impairment losses 34 : }
f. Other expenses 35 533.09 378.76
Total expenses {IV) 3,308.12 3,099.53
V' |Profit/ (foss) before exceptional items and tax {111 - 1) . 72933 638.44
Wi |Exceptional Items . - -
Vi |Peofit/(loss) before tax {V-vI) 72533 638.44

ill|Tax Expenses:
{}] Current tax . .
{0} Tax of earller years .
{ili} Deferred tax 195.11 163.78

Totz2! tax expenses 195,11 163.78 !
X [Profit/{loss) for the year (WII-VIl) J Tmmazz| | 47466

¥ |Other Comprehensive Income f {Expenses)
{i} (tems that will not be reclassified ta profit and loss

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 2.87 3.54
{if) tncome tax relating to ltems that will net be reclassifed to
profit and lass 0.72 0.89
Yotal Comprehensive Income / (Expenses) for the year [~ "7 T 3ss| T 443
Total Comprehensive Income f (Expenses) for the year [IX+X)
XI |{Comprising Profit/ [Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income 537.81 479.09
for the year) L -
Equlty shares of par value of Rs. 1000 /- each
X1l |Earnings per Equity Share:- Basic and diluted (Rs) 37 245.01 221.54
il Notes forming part of the financla) Statements ] 146
In terms of aur report attached. .
For Anil Mihlr & Assoclates For and on behalf of the Beard
Chartered Accountants
Flrm Reg No: 303038E
2 e.L-
{CA Mihir Kumar Sahu) {Gagan Biharl Swaln} {Kedar RanjanfPandu} '
Partner Director (Finance) Managing Director
Membership No.053968 DIN: 07687872 DIN:100937847

Place : Bhubaneshwar

{Basanta Kumar Sahoo}
Company Secretary
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ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

. .__ . [RupeesinCr)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended ended
o 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit before taxes 729,33 638.44 .
Adjustments for:
Drepreciation and amaortization expense 400.86 374.011
Fixed Assets retired by scraping 11.71 0.13
Gain/({loss) on Physical Inventory 0.01 {1.03)
Interest and finance charges 530.71 597.37
| Interest Income from investment & deposits {46.87) {o.95)'
| CSRexpenditure 13.24 3.01
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,638.98 1,601.97 |
Adjustments for: .- !
Trade receivable 281.77 . 127.80;
Inventory 22.62 ! {56.57)
Other financial and non financial assets {7.65) 23.11 |
Trade and other payables 230 {16.19)
Other financial and non financial liabilities 498.28 60.09
Cash generated from operations 2,436.30 1,740.21
Taxes Paid (2.81) 9.98
CSR expenditure {13.24) (3.01)
Net cash flow from operating activities 2,420.25 1,747.18
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES i
Payments for purchase of fixed assets (540.21) {378.16)
Interest received 17.06 13.08
Payment from FD {643.13) 133.29'
Dividend Including Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Net cash used in investing activitles {1,266,28) (231.78);
C  |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Issue of shares 188.00 38.00!
Dividends paid to owners of the Company {111.85) (103.37}|
Proceeds from borrowings {541.61) (829.74)1
Interest paid (568.67) (622.57)
Repayment of other financial liabilities : !
Wet cash flows from financing activities {1,034,13) (1,517.68);




ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

~ {Rupees In Cr}
For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended| ended 31
31 March 2025 March 2024
Net Increase/{decrease) in cash or cash equivalents 219.83 {2.28)
Cash 2nd cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year 1.09 3.38
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 220.93 1.09
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements Note No. 1-46

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 303038E

{CA Mihir Kumar Sahu)

Partner
Membership No.053958
Place : Bhubaneshwar

Date:

In terms of our report attached.
For Anil Mihir & Associates

{Gagan Bihari Swain)
Director (Finance)

DIN:07687872

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents is shown at Note 12
Figures in brackets are cash outflows / incomes as the case may be.

(f}y Cash and cash equivalents caonsist of ﬁeques, drafts, stamps in hand, balances with banks and
deposits with original maturity of upto three months.

Previous years figures have been rearranged / regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to current
year classification.

For and on behalf

ok

{Basant Kumar Sahoo }
Company Secratary

of the Board

el s

{Kedar Ran)an Pandu)

Managing Director
DIN:100037847

BHUBANESHAR |5
/‘5




ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

1. Company Informatlon and Material Accounting Policy Infarmation

A. General Cerporate Information: Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited {“the Company”}
isa Private Limited Company incorporated in India (CIN: U401040R19845GC001429) with its registered
office at Bhubaneswar, Qdisha, India. The Company primarily generates and makes bulk supply of
power by establishing, operating & maintaining power generating stations, These financial statements
have been approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on. k& « 08 . 26 2F

B. Materfal Accounting Policies: A summary of the materfal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been
applied consistently to all periods presented In the financial statements. It allows for an understanding
as to how material transactions, other events and conditions are reported. It also describes: {a}
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management makes in applying the palicles
that have the most significant effact on the amounts recognized in the Financlal Statements; and (b}
estimations, Including assumptions about the future, that management makes in applying the policies.
The Company has elected to utilize the option uader Ind AS 101-'FIrst time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards’ by not applying the provistons of Ind AS 16-'Property, plant and equipment’8
Ind AS 38- "Intangible assets’ retrospectively and continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount
a5 & deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of transition ta Ind AS Le. 1 April 2015, Therefore, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as per the previous GAAP as
at 1 April 2015, i.e. the Company's date of transition to Ind AS, were maintained on transition to Ind
AS,

C. Basls of preparation

{n Compliance with Ind AS and Schedule Ill of the Companles Act, 2013: The financial
statements of the Company is preparad in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{ind AS} notlfled under the Campanies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 [as
amended) read with section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and presentation requirements
of Schedule il to the Companies Act, 2013 {as amended).

{in Basis of Measurement: The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention with the exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be
carried at fair values by Ind AS. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or pald to transfer a Bability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date

{iii}  Functional and presentation currency: The functional and presentation currency of the
Company is Indian Rupee {"INR"} which Is the currency of the primary ecanomic
environment in which the Caompany aperates. Figures are taken from the source and
raunded to the nearest crores {up to two decimals), except when indicated otherwise,

{iv) Classification of Current f Non-Current Assets and fiabilities: All assets and liabilities have
been classifiad as current or non-current as per Company’s operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Schedule-ll of the Companies Act 2013. Based on the nature of business,




the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current
or noncurrent classification of assets a2nd liabilities, Deferred tax assets and llabilities are
classified as non-current on net basis.

D. Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companles {indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the
year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notlfied any new standards or amendments to the existing
standards applicable to the Company.

E. Use of estimates and critlcal accountIng Judgments: These financial statements have been prepared
based on estimates and assumptions in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles
of Ind AS. In preparation of financial statements, the Company makes Judgments, estimates and
assumptions that may impact the application of accounting policies and the reported value of assets,
liabilitias, income, expenses, and related disclosures concerning the items involved as well as
contingent assets and liab¥ities at the balance sheet date. The estimates and management’s Judgments
are based on historical experience and other factars considered reasonable and prudent In the
tircumstances. They are formulated when the carrylng amount of assets and liabilitles 15 not easily
determined from ather sources. Actual results may differ from these estimatas. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
racognized in the period in which the estimates arc revised and any future perlods affected. Significant
judgements and estimates relating to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, while evaluating /
assessing useful lives of property, plant and equipment, impairment of property, plant and equipment,
Impairment of investments, provision for employee benefits and other provisions, recoverability of
deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies is considerad. Key sources of estimation of
uncertainty at the reporting date, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for future years.

1. Cash and cash equivalent: Cash and cash equivalents In the balance sheet comprises of cash at
banks, cash in hand and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an Insignlficant risk of changes [n value, unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

2. Cash Flow Statement: Cash flow is reparted using the indirect method, where by profit / {loss) before
extra-ordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effect of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or aceruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. For the purposes of the Cash Flow
Statement, cash and cash equivalents as defined above is the net of outstanding bank overdrafts. In
the balance sheet, the bank overdraits are shown under borrowings in current liabilities.

3. Investments In subsidiaries, assoclates, and joint ventures

SUBSIDJARY - A subsidiary s an entity that Is controlled by another entity. Controlis achieved when the
Company, has power over the investee, Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. The Company
reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

ASS(QCIATE - An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Whereas
significant influence is the power to partlcipate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the




Investee but Is not control or joint control over those policles,

JOINT VENTURES - A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exlsts only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous cansent of the partles sharing control.

Investment In subsidiaries, assoclates and Joint ventures are measured at cost in accordance with Ind
AS 27 — Separate Financial Statements, less any impairment in net recoverable value that has been
recognised In profit or loss.

4, Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets [Other than goodwill}

4.1 Tangible Assets:

{

il.

vi

vil,

viii

Property, plant and equipment (PPE} held for use in the production or/ and supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are measured at cost, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost comprises purchase price
{net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebate etc.), borrowing cost, and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the assets to its location and condition for intended use.
Expenditure incurred on development of freehald land Is capitalized as part of the cost of
the land. Deposits, payments J liabllities made provisionally towards compensation,
rehabilitation and cther expenses relatable to land in passession are treated as cost of
land.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in
construction, direct labour, allacation of overheads, borrowing costs if any attributable to
such construction.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account
received from the contractors and verified & accepted by the company.

In the case of assets put to use, where final settlement of bHls with contractors are yet to
be effected, capitalizatlon is done on provisional basls subject to necessary adjustment, if

any, in the year of final settlement.

Unsettled liabilities for price variatlon in case of contracts are accounted far on estimated
basis as per terms of the contracts.

Assets and systems commoen to more than one generating unit are capitalized on the basis
of engineering estimates f assessments.

Spare parts having unit value of more than Rs 5 1akh that meats the criteria for recognition
as PPE are recognized as PPE. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and recognised in
the statement of profit and loss on consumption.

4.2 Intangible Assets:

U]

Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated Impairment losses. Intangible assets having finite useful lives are amortized
over their estimated useful lives, whereas Intangibles assets having infinite useful lives is
not amortized. The estimated vseful life and amortization methed are reviewed at the
end of each annual reporting perfod, with the effect of any changes In estimate belng
accounted for on a prospective hasis.




4.3 Subsequent expenditure:

(i)

(i1}

()

(iv)

Subsequent costs are Included In the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when [t Is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Expenditure on major maintenance ar repairs including cost of replacing the parts of
assets and overhaul costs where it Is prabable that future ecanomic benefits associated
with the item will be available to the Company, are capitalized and the carrying amount
of the item so replaced is derecognized.

Similarly, overhaul costs associated with major maintenance are capitalized and
depreclated over their useful lives where it is probable that future economic benefits will
be available and any remalning carrying amounts of the cost of previous overhauls are
derecognized.

The costs of the day-to-day servicing of PPE Is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss as incurred,

4.4 Decommissioning costs

)

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use
is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recogniticn criteria for a proviston are
met.

4.5 Capltal work-in-progress

i)

(i)

(0]

{iv)

Expenditure incurred on construction of assets which are not ready for their intended use
are carried at cost less impairment {if any) under Capital Work-in- progress. The cost
inchrdes purchase cost of materials / equipment’s duties and nonrefundable taxes, any
directly attributable costs and Interast on barrowings used to finance the construction of
assets.

Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the company relsted to generation of
electricity business Is reflected as a distinct item In capital work-In-progress till the perlod
of completion and ready for the intended use and, thereafter, under Property, ptant and
equipment. However, similar expenditure for CSR / community development is charged
off to revenue.

Expenses for assessment of new potential projects incureced till and for the purpose of
making investment decision are charged to revenue.

Expenses Incurred relating to project, net of income eared during project development
stage prior to its intended use are considered as expenditure during construction / trial
run and disclosed vnder Capital-Work-In-Prograss.

4.6 Depreciation and Amortization:

{i

(i)
{iin)

{iv)

Depreciation is recognized In statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of each part of an item of PPE.

Freehold Land is not depreciated.

Premium pald on leasehold land Including land development and rehahilitation expense
are amortized over 30 years by taking its useful life,

Capital expenditure on assets laid on fand not owned by the company as mentioned above




is amortized over a period of its useful life.

v} Depreciation is provided on a straight-line hasis aver the useful lives of assets, which Is in
accordance with Schedule Il of Companles Act, 2013 or based upon technical estimate
made by the Company.

{vi) Depreciation on the following assets is provided over estimated useful life as ascertained
based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluatlan that the useful lives
as best represent the period over which Campany expects to use these assets. Hence the
useful lives for these assets are different from the useful life as prescribed under part €
of Schedule 1l of the Companles Act 2013:

Tangible Assets:

Particulars | Depreciation / amontization o ) ]

Plant & Equipment | Over a periad of 30 years

{BTG & BOP)

MGR Track and | Overa period of 30 years

Rallway siding

Leasehold Land QOver the lease period ar 30 years whichever is less. In absence of
finalization of lease perlod, amortization made over a peried of 30

S years. B . _

Ash Ponds Over remaining period of useful life, evaluated on the basis of
technical estimate made annually which includes the estimates of
‘generation, utilization and increase of capacity in future years.

| Parta Cabin_ Over a period of five years

Tools and Tackles Over a period of five years ) )

oMT Colony | Over a period of 30 Years i

Bulldings

Intangible Assets . . .
Computer software / Tovera period of legal right to use subjact to maximum ten years.
Licenses

(viil  The estimated useful lives and residual valuas are reviewed at each year end, with the
effect of any changes in estimate, accounted for on a prospective basis. Each component
of 2n item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant In relation to
the total cost of that item is depreclated separately if its useful life differs from the others
compenents of the asset.

{vii}  PPE including toals and tackles costing up to Rs. 5,000 {Five Thousand Only] are fully
depreclated In the year in which it is for put to use,

{ix) Phystcal verification of Fixed Assets Is undertaken in a phased manner by the
management on yearly basis. The discrepancies noticed, if any, are accounted for in the
yaar in which such differences are found




4.7 Disposa) and derecognition of assets

(i)

An item of PPE 2nd Intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the differance
hetween the proceeds fram disposal, if any and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in profit or loss

4.8 Impalrment of tanglhle and intangible assets

(i}

{ii}

(i)

{v)

{v)

{vi)

{vi)

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impalrment loss. If any such Indication exists, the recoverable
amount of asset is reviewed in arder to determine the extent of the Impalrment toss 1f any.
Where an asset does not generate cash flows that are largely Independent of those from
other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
{CGU) to which the asset belongs. Thermal Power Plant and 2ach Mini Hydel Projact are
separately considered as cash generating units for determination of Impalrmient of assets.
Intangible assets with an Indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that the assets may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fairvalue less cost to sell and value in use. In assessing
value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a
pre-tax discount rate, that reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimation of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

An impairment loss Is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

When an Impalrment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of asset {or cash
generating unlt} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the

tncreased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined if there had no impalrment loss been recognized for the asset {or a cash
generating unit) In prior year.

A reversal of an Impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
immediately.

4.9 Farelgn Currency Transactions

{ib

{in)

Transactions in foreign currencies are Initially recorded in reparting currency Le. Indian
Rupees, using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and llzkilities denominated In foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items are measured
at historical cost.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which they arise,




4.10 Provislans, Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Asset

i)

{i5)

(i}

{v)

)

(i

{i}

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation [legal or
constructive} as a result of a past event which is expected to result in an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits which can be refiably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present gbligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and
untertainties surrounding the obligation. When appropriate, provisions are measured on
a discounted basis, the discount rate used Is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money In that jurisdiction and the risks specific to that
lability.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
evenis, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-gccurrence
of one ormore uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of the company or
a present obligaticn that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outfiow of resources will be required to settle or a relfable estimate of the amount cannot
be mada.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed In
the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of
judgment of management. These are assessed continually ta ensure that developments
are appropriately reflected in the financial statemants.

Cnergus contracts

A provision for onerous contracts [s recognized when the expected benefits to be derived

by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeating its
otligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the prasent value of the

lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract.

Resteration, rehabilitation and decommissioning

An gbligation to incur restaration, rehabilitation 2nd environmental costs arises when
environmental disturbante is caused by the development or engoing production of power
and other manufacturing facilities.

If recognized, such costs are discounted to net present value and are provided for and a
corresponding amount s capitalized at the start of each project, as soon as the obligation
to incur such costs arises. These costs are charged to the statement of prafit or loss over
the life of the operation through the depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the
discount on the provision. The cost estimates are reviewed periodically and are adjusted
to reflect known developments which may have an impact on the cost estimates or life of
operations. The cost of the related asset is adjusted for changes in the provision due to
factors such as updated cost estimates, changes to lives of operations, new disturbance
and revislons to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is depreciated prospectively




0

b

4.11 Leases

@i}

)]

over the lives of the assets to which they relate. The unwinding of the discount is shown
as finance and other cost in the statement of profit or loss.

Environmental liabilities

Envirgnment liabilities are recognized when the company becomes obliged, legally or
constructively to rectify environmental damage or perform remediation work.

Litigation

Pro?lsion is recognlzed once it has been established that the Company has a present
obligation based on consideration of the information which becomes available up to the
date on which the Company’s financial statements are finalized.

The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether
the fulfilment of a transaction is dependent on the use of a spacific asset and whether the
transaction conveys the right to use that asset to the Company In return for payment.
Where this accurs, the arrangement is deemed to Include a lease and is accounted for
accordingly.
Leases are classifled as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfers
substantially afl the risks and rewards of awnership to the lessee, All other leases are
classified as aperating leases.
‘The Company as lessee:
a. The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for fand, plant &
equipment, buildings and offices. The Company assesses whether a contract contalns
a lease, at the Inception of a contract. Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the [ease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum Jease payments. The corresponding
liabllity to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. For

short-term leases, non-lease components and lease of low value assets, the Company
recognizes the lease rental payments as an operating expense.

b. Certain lease arrangements Include the options to extend or terminate the Jease
before the end ofthe lease term, Right of Use {ROU) assets and Jease liabilities includes
these options when it 1s reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-
use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any [nitial divect costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and Impalrment losses, if any. An impairment loss is
recognized where applicable, when the carrying value of ROU assets of cash
generating units exceeds it fair value or value In use, whichever is higher.

c. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the [ease term. The lease liabilities are initially measured at the prasent
value of the future lease payments.

The Company as lessor;

a. Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.

b. Al otherleases are classified as aperating leases.

8 N




A [ease is classified as a finance or an operating lease as applicable.

Operating lease: Rental income from aperating leases Is recognized in the statement
of profit and less on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless
anather systematic basls 1s more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis aver the lease term.

Finance lease: When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of
the minimum lease payments is recognized as a receivable. The difference between
the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognized as an
unearned finance income. Lease Income 1s recognized over the term of the lease using
the net investment method before tax, which reflects a constant perledic rate of
return,

4,12 Inventorles

n

{ii}

{11}

{iv)

{v)

Cost of Inventorles includes purchase price, nonrefundable taxes & duties and ather
directly attributable costs incurred in bringing the same to their present locatlon and
condition.

Inventories of construction materials, raw materials, stores, chemicals, spare parts and
loose tools are valued at lower of cost determined on welghted average basis and net
realizable value. Materials In transit and materials pending for inspection are valued at
cost.

The diminution in the value of unserviceable, obsolete and surplus stores and spares [s
ascertained on the basis of annual review and provided for In the statement of profit and
loss.

Transit and handling losses fgain arises on physical verification including carpeting of coal
are included in the cost of coal. Carpeting of coal during pre-commissioning perlod is
treated as inventory and charged off to cost In the fiest year of operation.

Handling losses Including sludge of oil as per company norms are Included in the cost of
oil.

4.13 Trade recelvable

i}
{u}

Trade receivables are amounts due from custamers for sale of power in the ordinary
course of business.

Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless it contains a significant
financing component in accordance with Ind AS 115 (or when the entity applies the
practical expedient) or pricing adjustments embedded In the contract. Loss allowance for
expected life time credit loss is recognized on initial recognition.

4.14 FInanclal Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities (together Financial Instruments) are recognized when the Company
hecomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. Financial assets and llabllitles
are initially measured at falrvalue. Transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition
ar issue of financlal assets and financial liabilitles {other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit ar loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured an initial recognition of financial asset or financial liabiities.

)

Financial assets at amortized cost: Financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized costs if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective




of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the princlpal amount outstanding.

{ii) Financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial
assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and contractual term cof the financial
assets give rise on specified days to cash flows that are solely payment of principals and
the interest on principal amount outstanding.

{iii} Flnancial assets at Fair value through Profit or loss {FVTPL}: Financial assets are
measured at fair value through profit or loss unless It is measured at amortized cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive item on initlal recognition. The transaction cost
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and Habilities at fair value
through profit or loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

{iv) Financlal liabilitles and equity instruments Issued by the Company

a. Financlal Uabilities
Trade and other payables are Initially measured at falr value, net of transaction costs, and
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method.

b. Other financial liabllities are measured at amortized cost using the effective Interest

methad:
Equity instrumaents:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its llahilities. Equity instruments Issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs,
Compound instruments:
The component parts of compound Instruments {convertible instruments) issued by the

Company are classified separately as financial liabilitles and equity In accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement. At the date of Issue, the foir value of the

liability component is estimated using the prevailing marketinterest rate for a similar non-
convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortized cost basls
using the effective Interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
Instrument’s maturity date. The equity companent is determined by deducting the
amaount of the liahility component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognized and Included In equlty, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequantly re-measured.
v) Financial guarantee contract llabilities:
Financial guarantee contract liahilities are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FYTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of;
« the amount of the obligation under the contract, 25 determined in accordance with IND
AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
s the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization
recognized in accordance with the revenue recognition policies.
{vi) Derecognitlon of financlal assets:
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The Company derecognizes a financla) asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks dnd rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

{vii)  Impalrment of financial assets:

At each reporting date, the Company assess whether the credit risk on a financia! instrument has
increased significantly since [nitial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a
financtal instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance for that financial Instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expectad credit losses. If the credit risk on that financial instrument has Increased significantly
since Initfal recognition, the Company measuras the loss allowance {for a financial instrument at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses [or
reversal} that Is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognized as an
impairment galn or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

(viii)  Derecognition of financial llability:

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations

are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

fix} QOffsetting financial instruments:

Financial assets and liabllities are ofiset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when

there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intentlon to

settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liabllity simultaneously. The legally
enfarceable right must not be cantingent on future events and must be enforceable In the normal
course of business.

4.15 Borrowing cost

§)] Borrowing Costs comprise interest expenses, applicable gain / foss an foreign currency
borrowlngs in appropriate cases and other borrowing casts. Interest expense arlsing from
financial liabilities is accounted for under effective interest rate method.

{if) Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is
substantially ready for their Intended use,

it} A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes 2 substantlal perind of time to get
ready for their intended use. The Company considers a period of twelve months or more
as a substantial period of time.

{iv) When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the borrowing costs incurred are capltalised., When Company borrows funds
generally and uses them for the purpose of obtzining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation
of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of general
borrowing that are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition,
canstructionfexploration or erection of the qualifying asset.

{v} Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantlally all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying assets for thelr intended uses are complete.




{vi} All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

4,16 Accounting for Government grants / Grants In Ald Government grants are recognized when
there is reasonable assurance that we will comply with the conditions attaching to them will be
cemplied and that the grants will be received.

{i) Gavernment grants are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Company recognizes as expenses the ralated costs for
which the grants are Intended to compensate.

(i} Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase,
coastruct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognized in the balance sheet by
setting up the grant as deferred income.

{1t} Other government grants (grants related to Income) are recognized as intome over the
periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis.

{iv) Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
Incurred or for the purpose of providing immediate financial support within future related
costs are recognized In the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
became receivable.

v Grants related to income are presented under other income in the statement of profit
and loss except for grants received In the form of rebate or exemption which are deducted
in reporting the related expense.

ivi) The benefit of a government Ioan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a
government grant, measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair
value of the [oan based on prevatling market intarast rates.

4.17 Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits:

Liabllity In respect of short-term employee benefit Is recognized at the undiscounted amount of

the benefits expected to be paid in respect of service rendered by employee in an accounting

periad.

Post-employment benefits:

[§)] Defined Contribution Plans: Those plans where the Company pays fixed contributions to
a fund manzged by Independent trust. Contrihutions are paid in return for services
rendered by employees during the year. The Company has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund daes not hold sufficient assets to pay
employee benefits. The Company psy: fixed contribution to Provident Fund at
predetermined rates to a separate trust, which invests the funds in permitted securities.
The contributions to the fund for the year are recognized as expense and are charged to
the statement of profit and loss. The cbligation of the Company is to make such fixed
cantributions and to ensure @ minlmum rate of return to the members as specified by the
Government of India.

{li} Defined Benefit Plans: Those post-employment beaefit plans other than a defined
contribution plan. The gratuity schemes are funded by the Company and are managed by




separate trusts. The present values of these defined benefit plans are ascertained by an
independent Actuary on each balance sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit Methad
as per requirement of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. Re-measurement gains and losses
of the net defined benefit lability/ (asset} are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income. The service cost, net interest on the net defined benefit liability
/ {asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs. Past service cost Is
recognized as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment oceurs or when any
related restructuring costs or terminatlon benefits are recognized, whichever is earller.
The retirement benefit obligation recognized In the balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined-benefit abligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Long-term employce benefits {unfunded):

These benefits Include liabilities towards leave benefits {Including compensated absence which

are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the perfod in which the employee

renders the related service} and two months last drawn salary to meet travelling expenses payabla

in case of retirement on superannuation or death. The present value of obligation agafnst long

term employee benefits Is ascertained on each balance sheet date by an independent actuary

using Projected Unit Credit Method as per requirement of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. All

actuartal gains and losses and past service cost are recognized In the statement of profit and loss

In the period in which they arise.

As per the Campany’s policy, part of the employees are pald six months last drawn salary as one-

time financial benefit toward pension on retirement. The present valie of ohligation against long

term employee benefits is ascertained on each balance sheet date by an independent actuary

using Profected Unit Credit Method as per requirement of ind AS 19 - Employze Benefits, All

actuartal gains and losses and past service cost are recognized in the statement of profit and loss

In the period In which they arise.

Expenses on leave travel concession, leave salary including penslon contribution {employees on

deoputation) arc accounted for on cash basls following materiality concept.

4,18 Tax Expenses

{1 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from net profit as reported in profit or loss because it excludes items of income  or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxahle or deductible. The Company's Bability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted ar substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

{if) A provision is recognlzed for those matters for which the tax determinatlon is uncertain
but itis considered probable that there will be a futuere outflow of funds to a tax authority.
The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become
payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the
Company supported by previous experienca in respect of such activities and in certain
cases based on specialist independent tax advice.

{1} Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised on temporary differences between the
carrylng amounts of assets and liabllities and the amounts used for taxation purposes {tax
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base], at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent it is prabable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can he utilized

4.19 Revenue Recognition

(i)

(#)

(iii)

W)

(v)

{vi)

{vi)

[vill)

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revanue from Contracts
with Customers” using the cumulative effect method, applied to the contracts that were
not completed as of 1 Aprll 2018 and therefore the comparatives have not been restated
and continues to be reported as per Ind AS 18 "Revenue”.

The Company’s operatlons in Indfa are regulated under the Electricity Act, 2003 and
Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (“OERC’) determines the major part of tariff for
the power plants.

Revenue from the sale of electrical energy which is regulated based on certaln formulae
and parameters set out in tariff regulations issued from time to time. Tariff Is based on
the cost incurred for a specific power plant and primarily comprises two cemponents:
capacity charge le, a fixed charge, that includes depreclation, cost of capital, retern en
equity, interest on working capital, operation & malntenance expenses, interast on loan
and energy charge i.e. a varfable charge primarily based on fuel costs.

Revenue is measured based on the conslderation that is specified in a contract with a
customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the products or services and
excludes amaunts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenue
when {er as) the performance obligation is satisfied, which typically eccurs when {or as)
control over the products or services is transferred to a customer.

In the comparative period, revenue from the sala of energy was measured at the fairvalue
of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue was recognised when the significant

risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideratlon was probable, the associated costs could be estimated rellably, there was

no conttnuing management Involvement, and the amaunt of revenue could be measuvred
ralizbly.

Revenue from sale of energy is accounted for based on tariff rates approved by the OERC
{except items indicated as provisional) or as madified by the orders of higher Appellate
authority for Electricity to the extent applicable and best management estimates
wherever needed. Revenue from sale of energy is recognised once the electricity has been
delivered to the beneficiary and is measured through a regular revlew of usage maters.
Benefictaries are billed on a periodic and regular basis. As at each reporting date, revenue
from sale of energy includes an accrual for sales delivered to beneficiaries but not yet
billed i.e. unbilled revenue.

The incentives/disincentives are accounted for based on the norms notified/approved by
the OERC as per principles enunciated in Ind AS 115.

Revenue from sale of energy through trading, if any is recognlzed hased on the rates, term
& conditlon mutually agreed with the beneficiaries and/or revenue earned through
trading in power exchanges.

|3}
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{ix}

{x)

{1}

{xli)

{xiit)

Delayed Payment Surcharge for late payment/ overdue trade receivables against sale of
energy is recognized when there Is no significant uncertainty as to measurabllity or
collectability exists.

Rebates allowed to beneficiaries as early payment Incentives are deducted from the
amount of revenue.

Other Income: Rent, Interest / surcharge recoverable an advances to suppliars as well as
warranty claims / fiquidated damages Is recognized when there is no significant
uncertainty about callectability exlsts or accepted by other party.

Dividend Income: Dividend income from Investments is recognized when the
shareholder's rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest Incame: Interest Income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of Income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable. The effective interest
rate applicable which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition,

4,20 Exceptional ltems:
Exceptional items are items of Income and expenses within profit or loss from ardinary activities
but of such size, nature or Incldence whose disclosure is felt necessary for better explanation of
the performance of the Company.

4.21 Restatement of material error f omisslons
tncomes / expenditure relating to prior period of non-materlal nature i.e. below Rs.5 lakh is not
considered for restatement.

4.22 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

{0

(i}

(it}

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, the management of the Company is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongolng hasis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

The following are the critical Judgments, apart from those involving estimations (see point
“b" below), that the management have made In the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the financial statements;

Financial assets at amortized cost: The management has reviewed the Company's financial
assets at amortized cost in the light of its business model and has confirmed the Company's
positive intention and ability to hold these financial assets to collect contractual cash flows.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty: The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the end of the reporting
peried that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

15




lit,

amounts of assets and llabilities within the next financial year:

impairment of investments: The Company reviews the carrying value of Investments

carried at amortized cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for

impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than the carrylng amount, the

impairment loss is accounted for.

Provislans: Provisions {excluding retirement benefits and compensated absencas) are

not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate

required to settle the obligation at the halance sheet date. These are reviewed at each

balance sheet date adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liakilities: Contingent liabilities arising from past events the existence of

which would be confirmed only on occurrence or non-occurrence of ene or more

future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Company or centirgent

liabilities where there Is a present obligation but it is not probable that economic

benefits would be required to settle the obligations are disclosed in the financial

statements unless the possibility of any cutflow in settlement is remote.

Fair value measuraments and valuation processes: For financlal reporting purposes,

fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to

which the Inputs to the fair value measurements are observahble and the significance

of the Inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

» Levellinputsare quoted prices (unad]usted) in active markets far identical assets
or liabilities that the Company can access at the measurement date;

¢ lLevel 2 Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are ohservable far the asset or liability, either diractly or indirectly; and

s Llevel 3 inputs are Inputs that are not based on cbservable market data
{unobservable Inputs).
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ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED

7

Non Current financial assets- Loans

{Rupees In Cr}
Particulars Asar3l Mza;;: Asat3l M;rgc;q
a} Loans to employees

- Secured, considered good 0.24 0.54

! -Unsecured, consldered good 0.42 1.40
{ - Doubtfi - -
Less : Allowance for cradit Loss - .

Tatal 0.66 1.94)

{i) Loan o employees includes Rs. 2.78 Cr [Previaus Year : Rs. 3.34 Cr) on account of Vehlcle loan, Computer Loan
and Educational Loan which carries simple rate of interest varying between 6% to 8% per annum.
Secured |pan represents vehicle loan of Rs 0.50 Cr (Previous Year : Rs. 0.79 Cr), which has been hypothecated in

fi)

the favar of the Company.

There is no outstanding loans from directars or other officers of the Company.

Nen Current financial asscts- Others

r {Rupees in Cr)
| Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March,
. 2025 2024
a} Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity
{i} Fixed deposits with banks -
{i) Earmarked Balances with Bank towards
Fixed Deposits with bank pledged as security or margin money 11.43 11.37
b) Sccurity Deposits 28.84 15.68
Total 40,27 27.05

The company has provided Rs.0.16 Cr {Previous Year : Nil) in the form of fixed deposit of Axis Bank Ltd as
security against Bank Guarantee In favor of " Central Transmisston Utllity of India Limited.
The company has pravided security of Rs. 11.35 Cr {Previous Year : Rs 11.35 Cr} In the form of fixed depasit of

Qrissa State Co-Operative Bank in favar of " The Superitendent Enginaer, Main Dam Division, Sambalpur, Odisha"
for drawl of water from Hirakud reservair.

The Company has provided security of Rs 0,02 Cr {Previous year Rs 0.02 Cr) in the form of fixed deposit to Union
Bank of India for Issuance of Letter of credit In favor of “Energy Efficiency Services Limited”

The company has pravided security of Rs 0.03 Cr {Previous Year Rs. 0.03 Cr } In the form of fixed deposit towards
overdrawal facility of Rs. 1 Cr from Central Bank of India , Banaharpally, Odisha.

Security Deposits represents depasits paid against various ongoing capital contarcts.

3
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ODI5HA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED

9 Other non-current assets
{Rupees In Cr)
Partlculars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Capital Advances
Capital Advance # £8.68 122.56
Advances related to Indirect Taxes 0.49 0.40
Prepaid Expenses - -
Advance to suppliers & Contractors - -
: Total 69.17 122.96

# Capital Advance Includes advances given to contractors and service providers for execution of work
related to Unit 3 & 4 balance work and FGD & FGC work of Unit 3&4 {2 X 660 MW).

10 Jnventories (At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

{Rupees in Cr}

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
a. Raw Materials”™
Cost 73.52 97.60
Less: Provision - -
b. Components, Chemicals, Stores & Spares*
Cost 191.20 175.11
Less: Provision for obsolate stores and spares {1.19) {0.96)
¢. Taaols & Tackles
Cost 0.27 0.22
Less: Provision . -
d. Stockin Transit
Cost 0.01 -
Less: Provision - -
d. Stock pending inspection
Cost 2.28 2.02
Less: Provision - -
Total Inventories 266.10 273.89

* Physical verification of Inventaries has been carried out by third party except oil which Is conducted
internally and valued as per significant accounting policy Note No 4.12,
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ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED

13 Current finaneial assets-Current Loans
{Rupees In Cr)

P
articulars Asat 31 March 2025 | As at 32 March 2024

a. Loans to employees

- Secured, consldered good 0.26 0.26
- Unsecured, consldered good 1.86 114
- Doubtful - .

Less ; Allowance for credit Loss . .

b. Security Beposlts 1405 0.09

_TOTAL 3.17 149

{i} Fordetails of loan to employaes, please refer Note-7.
{ii} There is no cutstanding loans due from directors or other officers of the Company.

14 Current Flnancial Asset- Other

{RupeesinCr)
Partlculars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
Advances to others

Interest accrued on loans and deposits 30.79 0.98
Other Receivables 405 302
Less: provision for Receivable* {0.08) {0.08}
Receivable from related parties** 0.03 0.47
Total 34.79 439 ]

* Provisian for receivables represents provision created aglainst Ind Bharat reclvables as the same company goes
to NCLT and the matter is pending for seitiment.

**Receivable fram related parties includes receivables from OCPL which is related to receivable
2gainst statutory dues of deputed employees.




ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LEVITED

15 Current tax assets and liabilities

{Rupees in Cr)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Current tax assets
Tax refund receivables/Advance Tax 643.24 £35.52
Advance Tax and TDS for the year - 4951
Total 643.24 640.43
Current tax liabilities
Income Tax payable 621.81 621.81
Provision for taxation for the year - -
Total 621.81 621.81
Current Tax Assets (Net) 21.43 18.62
Current Tax Liabilities (Net} -
15 Other current assets
{(Rupees in Cr)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Other assets 18.25 15.99
Advances to suppliers 38.13 46,98
Less: Allowance for doubtful - -
Total 56.38 62.97

{i} Other assets include payment made for various insurance coverage and annual

maintenance contracts etc.

(i) Advancesto suppliers represents operational supplier which are expected to payable
within one year from the balance sheet date. These are unsecured and considered

good.
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ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED

18 OQther Equity

{

(it}

131

fiv,

)

—

{Rupeasin Cr}

Partleidars Asat 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2024
Share applicatlon money pending allotment . -
General Reserve 89.60 89.60
Retained earnings 2,349.38 1,923.141
Security Premium £8.88 58.88
Total 2,497.86 2.071.89
General Reserve
{Rupeesin Cr)
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 33, 2024
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year 89.60 BS.6GD
Movements - -
Balance at the end of the year B9.60 §9.60
Retalned Earmings
{Rupeces In Cr}
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,923.41 1,547.69
Peofit atzributable to owners of the Company 534.22 474.66
Other eomprehensive income arising from remeasurement 3.59 4.43
of defined benefit obligation net of income tax i ’
Payment of dividends on equity shares 11185 103.37
Related Income tax en dividend . -
Balance at the end of the year 2,349.38 1,923.41
Socurity Premlum
{Rupces In €r)
Asat March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
Balance at the beginalng of the year 58.828 53.88
WMovement during the year - .
Balance at the ond of the year _58.88 58.88

The nature of reserves ace follows:

{a) Genera) Reserve :- General Reserve was created throvgh transfer of part of net profit in accordance vith applicable
regulations under the provisions of erstwhile Companies Act 1956 which is continuing unchanged. Such transfer of part of
net profit is no more required under the provistons of the Companles Act 2013

(b} Securities Premium ; Securities premium Is used 1o record premium recelved on Issue of shares. The reserve is to be
utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.There Is no movement In the bafance of securities

premlum during the reporting year.

tnterim & Final Dividend:

In respect of the year ended March 31, 2024,final dividend of Rs 111.85 Crore at Rs 50 per share has been paid on fully paid

equity shares 1o the shareholders in the reporting year.




ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED

19 Non Current financial liabilities- Borrowlngs

{Rupeesin Cr)

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Secured - at amortised cost

For Unit 384

From Power Finance Corporation Ltd {PFC) 2,611.53 2,840.93

From REC LIMITED 1,670.52 1,851.14

From Indian Bank 709.96 787.07
For FGD & FGC of Unit 384

From Power Finance Corporation Ltd {PFC) : 230.15 177.22

From REC LIMITED 181.37 180.02
For Renovation & Modernization {Unit 152)

From Odisha Gramya Bank (0GB} 33.09 25.13

Total 5,438.62 5,861.51

A Term Loan from PFC, REC and Indian Bank :
(i) PFC and REC have sanctioned Rs 4290.06 Cr and 4181.25 Cr each which includes sanction of Rs 478.19 Cr and
369.25 Cr respectively towards cost overrun of the Unit 3 & 4 of Ib TPS,

(i) Qut of the loan disbursed by REC for Unit 3&4 , IbTPS, the compnay has refinanced Rs,1,000 Cr. from the Indian
Bank during the FY 2022-23.
{iif}) Security i
{2} The term loan together with all interest {including additional Interast), cost, expenses, applicable taxes,
statutory duties and other maney 1s secured with the prescribed coverage ratio {presently 1.1 times) as
applicable by a first charge, by way of mortgage on pari- passu basis through eguitable mortgage / simple
mortgage / English mortgage on the project land of Unit 3 & 4 [2x660 MW) of Ib Thermal project of the
Cornpany in faver of PFC, REC and [ndian Bank on all immovable assets of Project Unit 3 & 4 {2x660MW)
and first charge on pari passu basls by way of hypothecation in favor of PFC, REC and Indian Bank on all
movable assets of the project excapt raw materlals, consumable spares and book debts.

Save priority {in which case, PFC / REC will have 2nd charge) / pari passu on reciprocal basis {as applicable)
in favor of the Borrower's Bankers on Borrower's stocks of raw materials, firel stocks, semi-finished and
finished goods, consumable stores and such other movables as may be agreed to by the lender/s for
securing the borrowings for working capital requirements in the ordinary course of business.

First charge in favour of PFC, REC and Indian Bank and Second charge in favour of Union Bank of Indla by
way equitable mortgage of land measuring Ac 764.51 {Related to Power Plant Ae.101.02 dec., Ash pond
Ac.357.20 dec. and MGR Ac.306.29 dec.) of Unit 3 & 4 by deposit of original title document with PFC
(Trustee for PFC, REC, Indian Bank & Unign Bank of India).

The term loan is secured by a second pari passu charge on the stocks of raw materials, fuel stocks, semi-
finished and finished goods, consumahle stores and such other movables as may be agreed for securing
the borrowings for working capital requirements in the ordinary course of business.

{b} If the security provided becomes inadequate to cover the balance of each of the loan outstanding, the
company has undertaken to provide additional security as may be acceptable to [enders.

secured by opening of “Escrow Account” with Union Bank of India and also the Union Ba
appolnted as Escrow Agent for this purpose.




(iv) Repayment:-

{a} Term loan from PFC Ltd [s repayable in 60 (sixty) unequal structured quarterly instalments commenced
from 15th day of July 2020 and all subsequent instalments from balance sheet date become due for
payment on 10th day of April, 10th day of July, 10th day of October and 10th day of January every year.

{b) The term loan from REC Limited is repayable in 60({sixty} equal quarterly instalment commenced from
30th September 2020 and all subsequent loan repayment due dates shall be the last day of each following
catendar quarter till the entire loan amount with Interest and all other dues are repatd to REC Ltd in full,

{c) Term loan from Indlan Bank is repayable in 50 (Fifty) equal quarterly instalments commenced from 31st
day of March 2023 and all subsequent instalments become due for payment on 30th day of June, 30th day
of Sept, 31st day of December and 31st day of March every year.

{v] Interest:-

{a} Loan from PFC & REC: Interest on term loan shall be paid at the prevailing rate applicable to A+ category
of State sector borrower with discount / rebate allowed from time to time on the date of each
disbursement and on the date of interest reset with quarterly rest and 1 year reset basis as per the terms
and conditions of sanction of loan and policy of PFC and REC.

{b} Loan from PFC 11d: Applicable interest rate, after discount and timely payment rebate, is 9.70% p.a. w.e.f.
10.10.2023 on outstanding loan balance and dishursements. The interest rate revised to 8.90% p.a. on
outstanding loan balance reset vr.e.f. 10.10.2024.

{c) Loan from REC Limited: Applicable Interest rate after discount and timely payment rebate Is 9.42% p.a,
outstanding loan balance w.e.f. 11.09.2023 and disbursement. The [nterest rate revised to 8.92% p.a. on
outstanding loan balance and dishursement w.e.f. 11.08.2024.

{d) Interest on PFC [oan to be serviced on quarterly basis and due date for payment of interest is 10th day of
Aprll, 10th day of July, 10th day of Octcber and 10th day of lanuary every year.

{e) Interest on REC loan ta be serviced on quarterly basis and due date for payment of interest is last day of
the last month of the calendar quarter for every year.

{fi The Company has avalled the option for payment of upfront fee @ 0.05% on term loan sanctioned by PFC
& REC instead of commitment charges on undrawn amount for each of the quarter.

{g) Loan from Indian Bank: Interest on term loan shall be applied based on 3 month MCLR of Indian Bank on
monthly rest as applicable on the date of dishursement and reset accordingly. Interest rate applied during
April to June 24 ® 8.50% p.a., July to Sept 24 @ 8.55% p.a., Oct to Dec 24 @ 8.60% p.a., Jan to March 25
@ B.65% p.a. and w.e.f. 31st March 2025 @ 8.70% p.a.

B Term Loan:FGD & FGC

{i) Term loan of Rs 434.40 Crore each were sanctioned by Power Finance Corporation Limited (PFC} and REC
Eimited (REC) for construction of Environment Retrofit Project / tnstallation of Poflution Contral
Equipment's in Unit 3 & 4 (2X660 MW) Thermal Power Plant with Debt Equity Ratio of 4:1.

{ii} Security :~
{a) The Term Loan is secured by first charge on part pasu basis by way of mortgage in favour of PFC & REC by
extending the existing Charge an the Project land of Unit 3 & 4, Ph-l {2x660MW) of (b Thermal Project of
the Company and First charge on pari pasu hasis by way of hypothecation in favour of PFC & REC of all the
Borrowers movahle assets {save and except book debts}, including movable machinery, mandatory spares,

._\tools & aceessories, fuel stock, spares and materials at project site, present and future,




Save priority {in which case, PFC / REC will have 2nd charge) / part passu on reciprocal basis {as applicable)
on the following created and/for to be created in favor of the Borrower's Bankers on Barrower's stocks of
raw materlals, fuel stocks, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable stores and such other movables
as may be agreed to by the lender/s for securlng the borrowings for working capital requirements In the
ordinary course of buslness,

{b} As per agreement, enhance / open Escrow account for the entire pendency of the loan with the prescribed
coverage ratio applicable to the satisfaction of the lender/s for due fulfilment of the ohligations of the
Borrower and for due repayment of the principal amount of the loan together with all Interest (including
additional interest), interest tax, service charges, penal interest, interest on penal Interest, cost, charges
losses, applicable taxes, statutory duties and other money, etc. thereon and/or any other additional
amount(s) that become payahle,

{c) Repayment of the princlpal, Interest and other charges due on term loan fram PFC and REC has been
secured by opening of “Escrow Account” with Unfon Bank of India and also the Union Bank of Indla has
been appointed as Escrow Agent for this purpose.

(i} Repayment:-
{a) Term loan from PFC is repayable in 180 {One Hundred Eighty} equal monthly [nstalments due on 10th day
of each month, and 1st repayment date shall be the date falling 6 months after scheduled Date of
Commencement of Commercial Operation,

{b) The term loan from REC Is repayable in 60(sixty) equal quarterly instalment and the 1st loan repayment
due date shall be the last of the last month of the calender quarter following the quarter in which the
moratorium period expires and all subsequent loan repayment due dates shall be the last day of each
followlng calendar quarter till the entire loan amaunt with interest and all other dues are repaid to REC In
full.




{iv} Interest:.

{a) Interest on term loan shall be pald at the prevalllng rate applicable to A++ category of state secter borrower with
discount / rebate allowed from tirme to time on the date of each disbursement and on the date of Interest reset
with menthly rest and 1 year rest basls as per the terms and conditions of sanction of loan and policy of PFC and
REC.

{b] Interast rate applicable on the term [oan during the reporting period revised by PFC by allowing 30 bps discount
on PFC's circutar rate w.e.f, 24.03,.2024. Interest rate revised by REC by allowing 30 bps discount on REC's elreular
rate w.ef. 08.07.2023 with minimum base rate of 9.45% p.a. which was further revised to 8.75% p.a. w.e.f.
06.06.2024.

{C) Term Loan: Odisha Gramya Bank - Renovation & Modernizationof Unlt 1 & 2

i) Term loan of Rs. 450 Crore was sanctioned by Odisha Gramya Bank for Renovation & Modernization of Unit 1 &
2 [2X%210 MW) Thermal Power Plant with Debt Equity Ratio of 4:1.

(i) Security:-
{a} The Term Loan is secured by first charge on parl pasu basis by way of mortgage on all Immovable assets and of
hypothecation of all movable assets of 2X210 MW (save and except book debts and fuel stock , raw materials,
finished and furcished goods, consumables, store & spares and other current assets which s

hypothecated/charged for working capital loan ), including movable machinery, mandatary spares, tools &
accessories, spares and materials at site, present and future.

Equitable mortgage on proportionate land of Unit 1 & 2 including ash pond.

{iit} Repayment:-
The term Joan is repayable In 58 equal quarterly instalment and the 1st Ioan repayment due date shall be the
sept to Dec 2026 quarter following the quarter in which the moratorium period explres i.e. quarter ending

September 2026 and 2l subsequent loan repayment due dates shall be the last day of each {following calendar
guarter tlll the entire loan amount with interest and afl other dues are repald I full. i.e, before 315t March 2041,

{iv} Interast:-

Applicable Interest rate is equa! to 3 menth MCLR of 10B minus spread of 20 bps with monthly rest w.e.f. 22nd
February 2024 and the Interest revised as equal to RBI Repao rate plus spread of 190 bps with montly rest & yearly
reset w.e.f. 22nd August 2024, Interest rate applicable during the reporting pericd is 8.20% p.a. {22nd February
2024 to 21st May 2024}, 8.30% p.a. {(22nd May 2024 to 215t August 2024) and 3.40% p.a. (22nd August 2024 to
31st March 2025).

{0} The Company has not defaulted in payment of interest and principal instalment on Term Loan during the reporting
pesiod.

{E) The maturity profile of borrowings (Including interest accrued, Refer Note 24) is as follows:

{Rupees In Cr)

Contractual maturities As at 31 itarch 2025 As at 31 March 2024
[none year or less or on demand 562.56 560.33
Between one & two years 429.53 51111
Between two & three years 574.92 427.46
Between three & four years 618.87 569.52
Between four & five years 657.94 613.47
Mare than five years 3,189.67 3,775.42
Total contractual cash flows 6,033.50 65,457.31
Less: Capitalisation of transaction costs 32.32 35.47
‘Total Borrowlngs 6,001.18 6,421.84
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Year entded March Year ended March
Change In plan assets: 31,2025 31,2024
{a) Fair vakee of plan assets as at beginning of the year 62.47 57.70
{b) Interest income 4.39 3.93
{c) Remeasuremant gainsf{losses} - -
{d) Employers' Contributions - 10.69
{e} Benefits paid {8.83) {9.85)
Falr value of plan asscts as at end of the year 58.03 62.47
Year ended March Year ended March
Amount recognised In the balance sheet conslsts af: 31,2025 31,2024
{a) Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 58,03 62.47
{b) Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 55.53 60.39
{c) Amount recognised In the balance sheet 2.50 2.08
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Costs recognlsed in the statement of profit and loss consist of:
{a) Current service cost 2,59 2,79
{b) Net interast expense/{income) {0.14) 0.64
Costs recognised In the statement of profit and loss; 245 3.42
Costs recognlsed In the statement of ather comprehensive income
consist of:
{c) The Return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net
interast expense) {0.09) {0.29)
{d} Actuarial gains and (losses) arising from changes in demographic
assumption 0.00 {0.45)
{d} Actuarial gains and {losses) rising from changes in financial
assumption 148 8.09
{0) Actuarial gains and (losses) arising from changes in experience
adjustments 148 {3.81)
Costs recognised in the statement of other comprehenslve income 2.87 3.54

{iv) The fair value of company's retiring gratuity plan assets as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 by category are as

follows:
Year ended March Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Assets categary (%)
{3} Equity instruments . -
(b} Bebt instruments - -
{c} Funds Managed by Insurer 160% 100%
{v) The assumptions used in accounting for retiring gratuity are set out below:
Year ended March Year ended March
DN Cyrony, 31,2025 31,2024
(&7 6.73 7.18
701

S5 3 Ga%
o‘NER GE'

Q
o>

{a) Discount rate {25} < *Ssoc‘/
{b) Rate of escalation in salary [%) :_}"\ &
{
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{vi} The Company expects to contribute Rs, 2.60 Cr to the plan In Financial Year 2025-26 as per actuary report

{vii) The table below outlines the effect on defined benefit obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 0.50 % in
the assumed rate of discount rate and salary escalation rate.

As at March 31, 2025
Impact on scheme
Assumption Change in assumption liabHities
Discount rate Increase by 0.50%, (1.30)
Decrease by 0.50% 1.38
Salary escalation Increase by 0.50%, 1.37
Decrease by 0.50% {(1.31)

The above sensitivities may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it fs
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may
be correlated.

(vil) Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is
exposed to various risks as follow -
A} Salary Increases- Actua) salary tncreases will increase the Plan's liabillty. Increase in salary Increment rate
assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.
B) Investment Risk — If Plan s funded then assets Babilities mismatch & actual Investment return on assets
{ower than the discount rate assumed at the [ast valuation date can Impact the liability.

C} Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate In subsequent valuations can Increase the plan’s Hability.

D} Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation
can Impact the liahilitTes.




{iv] Interest:-

{a)

(b)

Interest on term [oan shall be paid at the prevalling rate applicable to A+ category of state sector
borrower with discount / rebate allowed from time to time on the date of each disbursement and on the
date of interest reset with monthly rest and 1 year rest basis as per the terms and conditions of sanction of
loan and policy of PFC and REC.

Interest rate applicable on the term loan during the reporting period revised by PFC by allowlng 30 bps
discount on PFC's circular rate w.e.f. 24.03.2024, Interest rate revised by REC by allowing 30 bps discount
on REC's clrcular rate w.e.f. 08.07.2023 with minlmum base rate of 9.45% p.a. which was further revised to
8.75% p.a. w.e.f. 06.06.2024.

(C) Term Loan: Odisha Gramya Bank - Renovation & Modernization of Unit 1 & 2

th

Term loan of Rs. 450 Crore was sanctioned by Odisha Gramya Bank for Renovation & Modemnilzation of
Unit 1 & 2 {2X210 MW) Thermal Power Plant with Debt Equity Ratio of 4:1.

{ii) Security :-

{a)

The Term Loan Is secured by first charge on pari pa2su basis by way of mortgage on all immovable assets
and of hypothecation of all movable assets of 2X210 MW {save and except book debts and fuel stock,
raw materials, finished and furnished goods, consumables, stare & spares and other current assets which
Is hypothecated/charged for working capitat [oan }, including movable machinery, mandatory spares, tools
& accessories, spares and materials at site, present and futura,

Equitable mortgage on proporticnate land of Unit 1 & 2 Including ash pond.
The term fean is secured by a second pari passu charge on the stocks of raw materials, fuel stocks, semi-

finished and finished goods, consumable stores and such other movables as may be agreed for securing
the borrowings for working capltal requirements in the ardinary course of business.

{iii) Repayment:-

The term loan 1s repayable in 58 equal quarterly Instalment and the 1st loan repayment due date shall be
the sept to Dec 2026 quarter following the quarter in which the moratorium period expires i.e. quarter
endlng September 2026 and all subsequent loan repayment due dates shall be the last day of each
following calendar quarter till the entire 1oan amount with interest and all other dues are repaid in full. i.e.
before 31st March 2041.

{iv) Interest:-

Applicable interest rate is equal to 3 month MCLR of 108 minus spread of 20 bps with monthly rest w.ef.
22nd February 2024 and the interest revised as equal to RBI Repo rate plus spread of 180 bps with montly
rest & yearly reset w.e.f. 22nd August 2024, Interest rate applicable during the reporting period is 8.20%
p.a. (22nd February 2024 to 21st May 2024), 8.30% p.a. {22nd May 2024 to 21st August 2024} and 8.40%
p.a. (22nd August 2024 to 31st March 2025).

(D} The Compzny has not defaulted in payment of interest and principal instalment on Term Loan during the
reporting period.

{E) The maturity profile of borrowings (Including interest accrued, Refer Note 24) is as follows:

{Rupees in Cr}
Contractual maturities As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
In one year or less or on demand 562,56 560.33
Between one & two years 429.53 511.11
Between two & three years 574.92 427.46
Between three & four years 618.87 569.52
Between four & five years 657.94 613.47
More than five years e 3,189.67 3,775.42
'P\rotal contractual cash flows =T 6,033.50 6,457.31
N Less: Capitalisation of transaction costs fﬁf A 32.32 35.47
F Tota) Borrowings EI O Gl M 6,001.18




ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATICN LIMITED

22 Non Current Nlabilitles-Deferred tax labilitles {net)

{Rupees In Cr}

Particufars AS 3t 31 March 2025 | As a 3 Mareh 2024
Deferred Tax Liabilitles {1,062.57) {965.93)
Less : Deferred Tax Asset 554,43 652.21
Net Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Llakbility 508.09 {313.70)
Income Tax
{l) The reconciliation of estimated Income taxes to income tax expenses s as follows:
{Rupees in Cr)
 Particulars Asat31March2025 | Asat 31 March 2024
Intome before Income taxes 72833 638.44
Tax Caleutated based on normal tax rate 183.57 160,68
Itemns not deductible for tax/not fiable to tax
Denatlon & CSR Expenses 336 1.24
Adjustment for ICDS 021 0.09
Impalrment loss . .
Others 7.97 1.77
{thcormne tax expense reported 195.11 163.78

{11} Significant component of deferred tax assets and |labllitles for the year ended March 31,2025 Is as follaws:

{Rupees In Cr}
Deferred tax Deferred tax
Opening Closing
Particulars balance as at upc::::g:;‘:f: {;’:‘::Zn;i; balance as at
Apiil1, 2024 profitand loss| recognized in 1) March 31, 2025
Deferred tax asscts
Pravislans 15.19 {1.27} 0.72 14.64
Business Loss 637.02 {97.17} . 539.85
Others
Total 52.21 {98.44) 0.72 554,49
Deferred tax liabifities
Property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets $65.91 96.67 - 1,062.57
Tatal 965.91 56.67 - 1,062.57
|tNet Deferrad tax (assets)/llabilitics 313.70 155.11 {0.72) 508.08

The Company has availed the optlon of concessional rate prescribed under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act and accordingly
recognized Deferred Tax Assets & Liahilitles consldering concessional nzome Tax rate of 25.17% Including surcharge and cess.
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ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED

24 Current Flnandal Liabilities- Borrowlngs

{Rupees in Cr}
| Particulars As ot 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks
Secured
a. Cash credit 2.35 102.88
Fram Flnancial Institutions
Secured
b. Meditum Term Loan from REC Ltd - -
b. Medium Term Loan from REC Ltd 0.00 20.83
Current maturities of non-current borrowings
From Financial Institutions and Bank
a. From Power Finance Corporation Ltd {PFC) 229,52 229.52
b. From RECLtd 180.73 180.73
¢. From Indian Bank 80.00 80.00
d. From REC Ltd- FGD 13.19 -
e. Interast accrued on borrowings 59.53 70.08
Total 565.32 684.04

A Cash Credit {CC):

{I) Werking Capital Limit of Rs. SGD Cr, consiting 60% as Working Capital Demand Loan {WCDL) & 40% as Cash Credit
{CC) Facility and Rs.50 Cr as Bank Guarantee (8G} & Letter of Credit {LC), sanctioned from Unlon Bank of India to
meet the Working Capital regulrement of the Company.

Drawl / utilisation of CC facility Is based on monthly drawlng power which is determined based on book debts [other
than book debts more than 180 days), Inventory for stores & spares, consumables and raw matedials {net off of
creditors) after taking Into account margin of 25% to arive the drawing powaer.

() Security: Cash Credit Facility is secured by First exclusive Hypothecation Charge on Raw materials, Consumable
Spares and Book Debts of Unlt 122 and Unit 384 and Second exclusive Charge on all the immovable and movable
assets charged to PFC, REC & Indian Bank created out of the Term Loan from PEC, AEC & Indian bank.

{lif) Interest: : Rate of interest applicable en CC facility Is inked to 1 year MCLR rate and reset on yearly basis. Interest
Rate applicable during the reporting year w.r.t. CC fazility is 8,65% p.a. (April 24 to May 24} and 8.90% p.a. (lune 24
to March 25). Rate of Interest applicakle on WCDL is linked to 1 month MERL rate & resot an menthly basls and
Interest rate applicable during the reporting year Is 8.15% p.a. (st April 24 to 10th Sept 2024}, 8.20% g.a. {11th Sept
2024 to 10th Nov 2024} and 8.30% p.a. {11th Nov 2024 to 315t March 2025}

{lv] The Company has not made any defavit [n repayment of [oans or interest thereon during the reporting year .

{v} Balance outstanding as on reporting date Is duly confirmed by Unlen Bank of Indla.

Borrowings {CC) secured ogalnst current asset
Monthly statements as per books of account related to current assets has been duly filed with the bank within
stipulated time.

B Medium Term Loan {MTL):
i) MTL with sanctlon limlt of Rs.500.00 Crore avalled from REC during FY 2021-22 to meet the working capital
requirement of the Company.

{li} Security: MTL Is secured by exclusive first charge by way of hypothecation of whole of the exlsting movable assets
Le. plant & machinery of Unlt 1 & 2, 210 MW each at IB Thermal Power Station In Jharsuguda District of Odisha
based en fair market value to cover 120% of the sanction Emit.

{il} Interest: Applicable Interest rate for MTL sanctloned by REC is 8.75% p.a. monthly rest.

{iv) Repaymoni: The MTL shall be repald In 24 monthly equal Instalments comenting after moratorivm period of 12
manth from 1st disbursement. The repayment of MTL commenced from May 2022 and fully repald in April 2024.

{v) The Company has not made any default in repayment of loans or Interest therecn during the reperting Year

Balance outstanding as on reparting date is duly confirmed by REC Ltd.

Current maturitles of non-current borrowIngs
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ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED
31 Employee Benefit Expenses

{Rupees in Cr)

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2025

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

Salaries and Wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff Welfare expenses

Total [A)

Less :
Allocated to fuel cost

Amount included in the cost of qualifying assets

Total (B)

Net (A-B}

102,92 101.59
10.08 10.66
10.02 10.33

123.01 122.58
11.84 10.38

1.22 1.15
13.06 11.53
108.95 111.05

{i)

Salary accrued amounting to Rs 2.05 Cr (Previous Year: Rs 1.76 Cr } as expenses with respect to
key managerial personnel. The details of such expenses are as below:

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

{a) Short term employee benefits
(b} Post employment benefits
{c) Other employee benefits

1.62
0.42

1.72
0.04

(i) Itincludes an amount of Rs 12.70 Cr {Previous Year Rs 11.99 Cr) towards provision for Variable Pay
of the employees under approved performance management system of the company.

(iii) Salary and wages includes Rs 3.05 Cr { Previous Year Rs 6.21 Cr ) towards provsion for EE, HPL, Two
months Terminal TA & Six months Pension during the reporting Period.

(iv) Disclosure as per Ind AS-19 in respect of provision made towards various employee benefits are

given as follows.

A. Provident Fund: Comnpany pays fixed contribution te provident fund at predetermined rates to a
separate trust, which invests the funds In permitted securities. The contribution to the fund for the
year is recognised as expense and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The obligation of




{v)

B. Gratuity: The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has rendered
minimum continitous service of five years is entitled to gratuity at 15 days salary (15/26 X last
drawn hasic salary & dearness allowance as applicable) for each completed year of service or part
thereof In excess of six months subject to @ maximum of 20 Months salary on superannuation,
reslgnation, termination, disablement or on death. The actuarial valuation has been made by
taking into account maximum gratuity @ 15 days salary for each completed year of service subject
to maximum 20 Months salary as specified in OPGC Ltd Rule for Group Gratuity Scheme. The
scheme is funded and managed by LIC. The Company recognised liability on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

C. Leave: The Company provides for earned leave benefit {(including compensated absences} and
half-pay leave to the cadre employees of the Company which accrue annually at 30 days and 10
days respectively. Similarly the company also provides benefit to Market Based Salary structure
employees (MBS} which accrued annually at 24 days. Earned leave and half pay leave are not
encashable during service. However total earned leave that can be encased on superannuation /

‘separation shall be restricted to 300 days incase of cadre employees and 120 days in case of MBS

employees. Commutation of half-pay [eave shall be permissible for cadre employees only. These
schemes are unfunded and the liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

D. Pension: The Company in its 204th Board meeting held on 28.05.2018 has approved six months
salary as one time financial benefits towards pension to the OPGC cadre employees at the time of
retirement with effect from 23.03.2017. The scheme is unfunded and the liability for pension
benefits payable is recognised based on the annual actuarial valuation,

E, Retirement TA: In accordance with provisions of company Travel Policy, two manths last drawn
salary is payable to employees on retirement by superannuation to meet travelling expenses. The
scheme is unfunded and the liahbility is recognised based on the annual actuarial valuation.

The above mentioned schemes (C, D and E) are unfunded and are recognised on the basis of
actuarial valuation.

(vi} The Gratuity scheme s funded and managed by LIC and the proportionate liability Is recognised on

the basis of actuarial valuation.

{vii) Providend Fund is manged by the Company through separate Trust.




ODISHA POWER GENERATION CORPORATION LIMITED
32 Finance Costs

{Rupees In Cr)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended

31 March 2025| 31 March 2024

{a)

(b)

Interest Expense

Interest on Term Loan 566.86 591.77
Interest on Medium Term Loan 0.14 13.65
Interest on Short Term Loan - 1.20
Interest on short term loans from scheduled bank 1.67 15.94
Interest on Decommissioning and Construction liability 0.82 0.36

Cther Borrowing Cost

Upfront fee Charges 3.51 3.88
Total Finance Cost 573.01 626.81
Less : amount included in the cost of qualifying assets : 38.79 25.56
Total 534.22 601,25

i

(i)
in}

{iv}

v}
{vi}

{vii)

Term loan from PFC , REC ,Indian Bank & OGB and interest for the same has been calculated based
on the outstanding loan drawn for Unit 3 & 4 and FGD & FGC Project & R & M work. For detail terms
and condition please refer Note 19.

Interest paid towards MTL loan to REC amounting to Rs 0.14 Cr {Previous Year Rs 13.65 Cr} has been
accounted for as Finance cost. For detalls terms and condition refer Note 24.

Interest paid towards Short term MTL loan to REC amounting to Nil {Previous Year Rs 1.20 cr) has
been accounted for as Finance cost. For details terms and condition refer Note 24.

Interest on Cash Credit lacn {CC) taken from Unlen Bank amounting to Rs 1.67 Cr {Previous Year
Rs.15.284 Cr) has been accounted for as Finance cost. For detalls terms and condition refer Note 24,

Interest on Decommissianing and Construction liability represents future decommissioning liability
of Ash Pond of Unit1,2,3 &4,

Upfront fee raprasents fees pald to PFC & REC, Indian Bank & SBI Caps at the time of availment term
loans which is charged on periodic basis as other borrowing cost.

Upfrant fee charges Includes, upfront fee / processing fee paid at the time of availment of term loan
to PFC, REC & Indtan Bank and cost of refinancing of existing term loan (i.e. pre-payment charges
pald to REC and syndication fees paid to SBI Capital Markets Ltd}, which [s amortised over the loan
period and stated under the head of other borrowing cost.
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
35 Other Expenses
{Rupees in Cr}

For the year
Particulars ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Generation Expenses:

Consumption of Stores, spares & chemicals 95,64 88.40
Power charges 0.54 0.79
Electricity Duty 50.63 45,52
Water charges 48,45 4597
Contract Job outsourcing expanses 95.43 75,53
Insurance 57.18 47.85
Other Generation expenses 29.14 25.93
Ash Utilisation Expenses 26.83 5.58
Environmental Compensation Charges 23.61 -
Repairs to Ash Pond 26.87 20.91
Repairs to buildings 7.95 6.35
Repairs to Machinery 0.21 0.20
£62.48 363.03
Administrative Expenses:
Rent 2.46 2.25
Recruitment & training expenses 111 1.43
Legal fees & axpenses 2.27 13.17
Fine & Penalty Expenses
T malntenance expense 6.24 4,66
R/M to other facilities 2.21 152
Repair & Running expenses of Motor Cars & other vehicle 4.62 4.57
Professional Fees and expenses 1.00 091
Land Rent & Cess 28.88 4.53
Rate, Taxes & Cess 0.21 -
Travelling expenses 0.77 1.24
Watch and Ward expenses 10.42 8.79
Township development expenses 21.45 ig.g3
General expenses 5.32 7.44
87.40 70.13
Other Expenses;
Remuneration to Auditor 0.22 021
Peripheral development expenses 0.0 0.01
Donation - 2.00
Provision for obsalate spare 0.23 -
Provision for accrued interest against BG encashment 28.43 -
Directors sitting fee 0.15 0.01
Fixed Assets retired by scraping 11.71 0.13
40.83 2.36
Carporate Social Responslbllity {C5R) Expenses 13.24 3.01
Less: Allocated to Fuel Cost 70.23 58.73
Amount included in the cost of qualifying assets .~ F5Sapn, 0.23 1.05
ﬁ. NE\ 7046 50.78| .
[Total (:,-[\ w1 533,08 | 23 Qi;___/ Jf 378.7%’\_{511\ RN
3. /& vb”s:oo X =5
%ﬁﬂ B
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48-17/1/2025-NRE SECTION
Government of India
Ministry of Power

dkd

Shram Shakti Bhawan, Raft Marg,

New Delhi, 06™ August, 2025
To,

1. Principal Secretary/Secretary in charge of Energy /Power Department, All States /UTs.
2. CMDs Heads of alt CPSUs.
3. DG, APP and IPPAI

Subject: Clarification on Renewable Generation Obligation {(RGO)
Sir / Madam,

| am directed to refer to the Ministry of Power's Resolution even number dated
27" February 2023 on Renewable Generation Obligation (RGO) mandating the Generating
company establishing a coalflignite-based thermal generating station having the
Commercial Operation Date (COD) of the project on or after 1=April 2023 to establish a
minimum capacity of Renewable Energy (RE) generation sources or purchase and supply
the RE equivalent to such capacity.

2. The Resolution mandates ihat the coalilignite based thermal generating
Station, having COD between 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2025, RGO may be complied by
1% April 2025, Thermal generating station having COD after 1t April 2025 shall be required
to comply with RGO of 40% by the COD.

3. This ministry has received representations seeking clarification regarding RGO
compliance through subsidiaries. After careful consideration, it is clarified that RE
generated or procured and supplied by wholly owned subsidiary of the Generating
Company or wholly owned subsidiary of any of the Companies of a Joint Venture (JV)
company shall be counted towards RGO compliance for the Generaling Company or the JV
Company establishing Coal / Lignite based thermal generating station. Itis also clarified that
establishment of a minimum capacity of Renewable Energy generation sources or purchase
and supply the renewable energy equivalent to such capacity, as mentioned in the subject

notification is voluntary.
You;;?"lhfully,
iy
(Sunil Kumar Sha

Director {(NRE/RCM)
Email: sunil.sharma24@gov.in

4.  This issues with the approval of Competent Authority.
n
rma)

Gopy for information to




NMouvh W R

Chairperson, CEA

Secretary, CERC/FOR,

Secretary, All SERCs

All JSICE of Ministry of Power & Economic Advisor, Ministry of Power
Sr.PPS to Secrstary {(Power)

Sr PPS to Add! Secretary (R&R)

PSO to CE (R&R)/ PA to Director (NRE), Ministry of Power




